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Chairman’s Statement

V28

On behalf of the Board (“Board”) of Directors (“Directors”,
each being a “Director”), | am pleased to announce
that Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd (“Company” or “Tengy Environmental”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) recorded solid
financial results for the year ended 31 December 2018
(“Year").

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries.

The Group is with over 20 years of industry experience and
continue to innovate in industrial technologies.

The Group's operating income during the Year increased by
8.4% to approximately RMB858.8 million, while the profit
before tax during the Year decreased by 61.5% compared
to the corresponding period of last year, to approximately
RMB46.4 million. Meanwhile, the profit attributable to
shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”, each
being a “Shareholder”) was approximately RMB31.2
million, representing a decrease of 62.5% compared to the
corresponding period of last year.

AABRRESZ ((EE g ([EFE8)MAE
AT RERERBEBROABRAR ([RAF] 2k
[REBRR]) REAWMBAR (SR [AEE] )R
BHE_Z-N\F+_RA=+—BLEFE(XEF
B SBIRROMBsEE-

AEBERERNGE ARG RIABRTT RUE
B EREIRBRYOP RS EZETE
REPRMS AERES-

AEBERABE0FNITEERBETERNT
[ 45 48 1B SR Al

REBARNFEERNLEERALINSA%ENARE
858.8E &L ' MANF[E R T Al 7 AR & F 7 HA
BN EMNARELATE L R AR F]
R ([RER]) EHEANAEAREII28E T
BEFRER 162.5% o
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Chairman’s Statement

BV 28

Approximately 79% of the revenue for the Year of the Group
is from the sales of electrostatic precipitator (63%) and
electrostatic-bag composite precipitator (16%), amounting to
RMB537.2 million and RMB132.7 million respectively.

The Group believes that, with its leveraging years of
industry experience and continual innovation in industrial
technologies, the Group can obtain more new projects from
customers in the national electricity industries and also from
other industries due to its enhanced reputation as reliable
atmospheric pollution control solution provider.

The Company has now possessed a grade A environmental
engineering design (air pollution control project) qualification
certificate (R AFIRIMTIRRAZEE (KRSEMEIRE)E
B EE) issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development in the People’s Republic of China (FRZE AR
HMBEEEMMALERET), a grade A air pollution control
engineering design service capability evaluation certificate
(FRAR SR CEIREBERARBENTIEBES
and a grade A air pollution control main contractor service
capability evaluation certificate ( FF £ K575 26 18 T 12 4875
BRI AL N EHEZEZ ) both issued by Zhejiang Environmental
Protection Industry Association in the People’s Republic of
China, which allow the Company to tender for more projects
in the future.

Besides, the Group possesses a competitive advantage over
existing market competitors as well as new entrants in new
projects due to its extensive project experience over the
years.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") currently continues
to strengthen its effort in environmental protection by
strictly control the emission of air pollutants due to the fact
that the large amount of major pollutants produced during
the coal combustion process of coal-fired power plants,
including particulates, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and
etc. A stringent accountability system was rolled out with
the aim to achieve the governance effect.

RER REBAOTI%NWRKAFERES
(63%) R BREARERR(16%)IHNHE - DRIRA
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Chairman’s Statement

BV 2

With increasingly stringent environmental protection
inspection, the environmental protection equipment which
does not meet the requirements must be upgraded and
modified immediately, which in turn will give significant rise
to a certain demand for precipitators.

Looking forward, more effort will be put by the Group
to enhance its research and development capabilities,
to develop new technologies and to expand the product
portfolio.

Simultaneously, the Group will seek for the growing
opportunities in the air pollution control solutions industry
of the PRC, as well as of overseas markets to expand its
market share in different markets.

Last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the
management team and employees for their tireless efforts
and | sincerely thank the Shareholders and investors for their
continuing trust in and support to the Group.

The Group will continue to seize market opportunities,
protect the blue sky and clear water and build a century-
lasting Tengy!

EEEBRRNBRESNET HAGEBRM
BRREBLMRE TS ETARESHR
ERENER-

REARR AEEKEERAENEE S IR
BB RERERBES

B[R - RERE S RPBIALBINTIHBEAR
SHARMRBRTT RITERAEENRE  BAR
RARMISH TS0 -

K& AABRREZTE ROBHEEEBTK
BENTERE N UREBRREREE —BHIUAK
HAKENETESF-

AEBEKEELEDSHE REEXEK ]
EHFREZR
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Financial Highlights
SV ik 2

Year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=1t—HLEE

2018 2017 Change
—E-N\E —T—+tF gE)
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results ES ARET T AREBTTT
Revenue g 858,817 792,152 8.4%
Profit before tax A& A 46,408 114,483 -59.5%
Income tax expense iR (15,172) (31,319) 51.6%
Profit and total comprehensive R & 2 E KA
income for the year B 31,236 83,164 62.4%
Earnings per share attributable AR E@EERIFTEA
to ordinary equity holders of FEE G R
the parent
— For profit for the year —F R 0.23 0.62 -62.9%
As at 31 December
W+=-A=+—H
2018 2017 Change
—E-N\F —t&F o
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results ES ARBT R ARBTIT
Total assets BEEHLE 1,504,288 1,639,560 -8.3%
Net current assets MBEEFE 559,334 528,638 5.8%
Total assets less current liabilites EEAERTHEE 721,226 689,990 4.5%
Total liabilities BfELE 783,062 949,570 -175%
Total equity k] 721,226 689,990 4.5%
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —t &
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial Statistics B %5 BB AR®T T ARETFIT
Current ratio Mete Bl b 3R (i) 1.7 1.6
Gearing ratio Mete 2 N GEe 12.8% 9.0%
Inventory turnover days (days) "ot 3 GFERERE (X) Wi 164.9 302.0
Trade receivables turnover days E 5 WG IE R E R
(days) Mote 9 (K) (Mia) 277.8 213.1
Trade payables turnover days B P EMNFIERE R
(days) Mete & (R) (hs) 184.8 230.2

8
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Financial Highlights
oA 5 ki 2

Notes:

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Gearing ratio = (total bank loan - cash and cash equivalents)/total
equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = 365 days/(costs of sales/average balance of
inventory (net off impairment))

Trade receivables turnover days = 365 days/(revenue/average balance
of trade receivables balance (net off impairment))

Trade payables turnover days = 365 days/(cost of sales/average trade
payables balance)

Bt -

MBLLE=RBEE TRBHEE

BAEELE= (BOEXRR-RERRSSEY)
/R B EX100%

FERBRE=365K, (HEKA, FETFHEH (1
BmME) )

B o RN IEAERH =365K, (W, B 5 EKRK
BT (HBREE) )

EHRENRBRBRE—365K, (HERKEHE
NRIEF 19 45)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BOLNE kv B 23 B

OVERVIEW

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries. The Group
has years of industry experience and record of continual
innovation in industrial technologies.

During the Year, the Group generated its revenue primarily
from (i) sales of environmental protection equipment; (ii)
sales of materials; and (iii) rendering of services.

The Group's sales of environmental protection equipment
represented tailor-made and integrated atmospheric
pollution control solutions offered by the Group to its
customers, comprising engineering design, equipment
procurement and manufacturing, supervision of installation
and commissioning, customer training, and repair and
maintenance services provided to its customers on a project
basis. During the Year, the Group mainly offered three
types of precipitators: electrostatic precipitators, bag filter
precipitators and electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The Group's sales of materials represented sales of
materials, including raw materials, spare parts and
components and scrap materials to related parties or
independent third parties.

The Group's rendering of services represented its
technology consultancy services provided to its customers
on a stand-alone basis, which include repair and
replacement, and on-site engineering and maintenance
services for those projects which were not constructed by
the Group.

Precipitators are widely installed at coal-fired power
plants, metallurgical plants, paper mills and other industrial
production plants. As such, the Group has an extensive
range of customers including the project owners of power
plants and industrial production plants, or contractors
who undertake the construction work of power plants and
industrial production plants.

G

AEBEREBNEEANRISRI AR RHEE
B EEE NN SERES A ETE
REPREFARKER ASBEEZFNT
ERBAGETERM EFEERAIF-

AEE AERENREEIEELBHERRR
(D E MR R G BR HAR A -

AEBEHERARRBEARERTPRERENE S
EENGARRSRN AR BIEKAR

AEFPRHTER REFBREE BER

KR FPEIIREEEEERS  AFE

Z’KEIIKTETAf%igT%ﬁ‘*-H?E&%E%ﬁ‘{z\%ﬁ
PREEZE M EREARES

AREBEHEMRIERRB I XBLFE =T HEN
PR BRSO AR e REHY o

AEBRHRBEASBIRBLEERTFRMH
BT ARYE ERAL R ARERZENRA
R ERER ARRS TR REERS -

HRGESRCEREER B E8mEE
WIELEEREECZRE Bt AEENES
HBAEET BREBERMERIELEREHNER
BEN NEABRBREREIELERENEET
RHEBR -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FPLR kv B 23 B

BUSINESS REVIEW

The PRC is currently the second largest economy in the
world. Currently coal consumption is still in a dominant
position in the energy consumption composition of the PRC.
Under such circumstances, the most severe atmospheric
pollution problem in the PRC is coal-burning pollution, which
is mainly caused by pollutants such as dust, smoke dust,
sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides. Since the 21st century,
the emission volume of air pollutants, such as smoke dust
(dust) and sulfur dioxide, has generally declined. This is
mainly due to the fact that the PRC continues to strengthen
its effort in environmental protection by strictly controlling
the emission of air pollutants in recent years.

The year 2018 marks the opening year for “Defending
the blue sky” by the Party Central Committee, the State
Council, the Provincial Party Committee and the Provincial
Government. Guided by the decisions and arrangements
of the Party Central Committee and the Provincial Party
Committee and the Provincial Government regarding
“Defending the blue sky”, all departments at all levels are
obliged to exercise due diligence in discharging their duties,
to co-ordinate with other departments and to implement
various measures strictly.

In the “Opinions on Strengthening the Protection of the
Ecological Environment in All Aspects and Firmly Winning
the Battle of the Preventing and Controlling Environmental
Pollution” promulgated in June 2018, the guiding ideology,
mission and objective of strengthening the protection of the
ecological environment in all aspects, and firmly winning
the battle of the preventing and controlling environmental
pollution have been deployed and requested uniformly. The
overall targets and requirements indicate that the quality
of ecological environment on the whole will be improved
by 2020, with a significant reduction in emissions of key
pollutants.

EH O

FEBATRERE - KREEAE- B AT REW
RERBRERAARPTOEE BT ZAEBRE T K
BEARSREIEUNRER SR AT TEAH
EEE —RIRRAELYESTRMIERK-
T HAERREE (M) E —RIERERES
AYHFBREREBER TENBY  ERHENIOSF
KEFKIRIRR A E - BRABIE SR A5 R B
EMMKR-

“T-N\EFREPR BEBRNEZERTT &
EXREENFARF SRZHPIRRPRANE
ZEBRERTRERREBORKNE  BRE
B BRAKE BREESRER-

T VA B (3t R EBRR
2EMBARBRRE  ERITIDS R AR E
RO R)  HRENAEEERRE BRI
SR ARB R ES B8 EET A BT T
GBENERRBABERI - T
EEREREARNE EESRNANAEA
B o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BOLNE kv B 23 B

The State Council issued the Notice regarding the “Three-
Year Action Plan for Winning the Battle for a Blue Sky"” (Guo
Fa 2018 No.22) on 27 June 2018, so as to improve the air
quality conditions and make every effort to defend blue sky.
The action plan aims to reduce the total emissions of major
air pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions synergistically,
to further reduce the PM2.5 density, lower the number of
days of heavy pollution and improve the air quality conditions
significantly through three years’ unremitting efforts. It is
proposed to reduce the PM2.5 concentrations in cities at
prefectural level or above, which failed to meet the national
standards, by over 18% and the total emissions of sulphur
dioxide and nitrogen oxides by over 15% respectively by
2020 as compared with 2015.

With increasingly stringent environmental protection
measures, the environmental protection system and
equipment which does not meet the requirements and
standard must be upgraded and modified immediately,
which in turn has given rise to a higher demand for
precipitators.

The Group believes that by leveraging on its track record and
advanced technologies together with its stable workforce,
its ability to secure new projects will be improved.
Besides, the Group continues to expand its business and
has completed various precipitators-related works in the
metallurgy industry in 2018. This laid a solid foundation for
the Group to secure orders in the metallurgy industry.

For the Year, the revenue and total comprehensive income
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB858.8 million
and approximately RMB31.2 million respectively. During the
Year, the Group's gross profit amounted to approximately
RMB141.2 million, representing a decrease of approximately
29.1% as compared with approximately RMB199.1 million
of the corresponding period of last year; and the Group's
gross margin decreased by approximately 8.7% from last
year to approximately 16.4%. This decrease in the gross
profit and gross margin for the Year of the Group was mainly
attributable to significant increase in the price of steel, one
of the major raw materials of the products produced by the
Company, during the Year.

RIMRBERRERME THRERREE  —
E-N\FRAZTLHBEBRNET HTHE

REE=F17ETE) @ (FEE (2018) 22
%) - TR EMBRRE  KB3FE N AERD
TEAR A REE BRI IEEREEE
- TRBEREARNYRE RERLE
BARRE HENERAERBES RLED -
Z_THE PM2OREBRMBENA EWTIRELL
“E-RFTRI8RNA L — & ARLY
REEN I —T—AF TE15% A LFAE

Bz

B BRIBHERIEET  MATAERRIBE
EREHRBRESLINREHAE  REDE
KB EERR R K -

AEERE AEBEGRZEAENEGEEREENR
o EIRE S E) J1 - A BHIE N A 5 B S BT
HEMREN ZIANERE_T— \FEBLR
HREITENEBATR TIAETERENRE
BRIV REARSTTEZIFBEEE THENE

Bt o

REE AEEHREREERARES B AL
ARS8 8EE LN ARKII2EE L NF
B AEEENREFRANHARKI99.158
LR 8929 1% EHARE141.2B BT MAEE
EFREEERMDLIBT%EL6.4% ~ KREEH
FRNEFREMERDOEZHRRME (RNQF]
EEMEMN—BXERM)EBEBRETFEER
g _E AR FTER o

12 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd ¥ {T. 5% % BRI By 45 B 2 )



Management Discussion and Analysis

FPLR kv B 23 B

For the Year, the value of the Group's new contracts (which
represents the aggregate value of the contracts it entered
into during a specified period) was approximately RMB981
million. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’'s backlog
(including applicable value-added tax) (which represents the
total estimated contract value of work that remains to be
completed pursuant to outstanding contracts as of a certain
date and assuming performance in accordance with the
terms of the contract) was approximately RMB1,908 million.

The Group's profit before tax for the Year decreased to
approximately RMB46.4 million and profits attributable
to owners of the Company decreased to approximately
RMB31.2 million, representing a yearon-year decrease of
approximately 59.5% and approximately 62.4% respectively.
The aforesaid downturn is mainly due to the decrease in
the gross profit and government grants to approximately
RMB141.2 million and approximately RMB2.1 million for the
Year respectively.

At the time of raising the amount of product sales, the
Group spent great effort in enhancing cost management
to make its products and solutions more cost competitive.
The atmospheric pollution control solutions offered by the
Group mainly comprise the atmospheric pollution control
devices designed and manufactured on its own. The Group
possesses the qualifications and expertise in manufacture
and supply of the key atmospheric pollution control
system of the projects it undertakes based on customised
design proposals. The Group is dedicated to improving
its manufacturing process and management system by
managing the product quality and operation, reducing
energy consumption and assessing the environmental
impact in accordance with international standards. The
quantitative management, environmental management and
quality management systems of the Group were awarded
with a number of ISO certificates. These systems help
the company in estimating costs, smoothening project
operations and improving operating efficiency.

AEE AEEHARANEE (AXKEREE
HRFI N aREE) IRARKIBIBEET -1
“E-NFTA=T—H AEENKRERA
R (BEEREER) (EREBEBEX—FE
AHMRZERARBGHNBERF R TENGERE
FAERRESRGEFELNRERE)ORA

i —

R #1,908F & 7T °

REBRAFEOHRIDEFR L ZHAREAL6.4
BEL MARRBEEABEEMABLELD
ARBES12B BT 2 5L F 8 2 4959.5% K& 4
62.4% o il R iR 3 2 i i A F E 6T FIFBUA
WD AR ENARKI42EBITMHOARE
2 1B &L

ERESERBEEENRE  AEBEXDIMBKA
IR EEMMBRNREEBAKAZES T - AEE
RHEMARRISRIEBANTEEIERREE TR
RELEMARISRIARE - AR BEHEERIERT
HERA T REE NP EMAKBEEN I EARS
AURRBNEERER AEERONKEL
ERELEERG RRAKREEEEREE
& RLMEARRIETREZEN G-
AEENEEE RREENEEEERGE
BZHISOBIEE - ZFRRABRRAIEERA
FE(RIE B IBF B h A R RIS &K -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BOLNE kv B 23 B

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 37 registered
patents (including 3 invention patents and 34 utility
model patents) in the PRC. Based on its strong design
and engineering capabilities, the Group primarily provides
comprehensive atmospheric pollution control solutions to
its customers. The Group offers a wide range of models
of electrostatic precipitators which support electricity
generators with capacity spanning from 6.25MW to over
1,000MW. The Group is one of the few manufacturers in
the PRC which provides electrostatic precipitators for single
generator unit with capacity of 1,000MW or above.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group maintained a total
of 617 full-time employees (2017: 605). The remuneration
payable to the Group's employees includes basic wages,
bonuses and other staff benefit. The Group conducts
periodic performance reviews for the employees and
determine their remuneration based on factors including
qualifications, contributions, years of experience and
performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB858.8 million for the Year representing an increase of
approximately 8.4% from approximately RMB792.2 million
of the corresponding period of last year. The increase was
mainly due to the completion of certain large-scale projects
during the Year.

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H KEBETHR%
BI7EZMER (BEIBELEAERN MI4HEE A
FEEHN) ERAEERARTRIEES
AEBFENRFREZEMARK AN ARRS
R AEBRENSFERESVREZES T HN
T6.25 Kk FLE#11,000)K LA B E# - REE R F
= 8ae B1,0000K A LR E — TR EIR
HEFERERNRER-

RZE—NF+_A=+—08 xEBEXLE6174
2HEE (ZZT—tF:605%) - ENTFALERE
EMFNEEEATE AREME TR -
AEBTHRTEENRR REEBHNEE B
B FERKRAEAZEEMMAOEH-

Bt %5 O R
Iy 25

AEENK DA EFRMNOARK792288T
BINHBA%EANFEMMARKES88HETT
BRI EBZHRNRANFETREERIER AT
B o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FPLR kv B 23 B

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue by segment and each item as a percentage of
revenue for the respective years indicated:

TERBIIFARESFEAEEIRD DB DM UEH
AR EBHKRENE DL :

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2018 2017
“E-N\E§ T —tF
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETT % ARETTT %
Revenue 22

Sales of environmental HERRR
protection equipment 848,815 98 778,757 97
Sales of materials HEN R 8,002 1 12,943 2
Rendering of services RERE 2,000 1 452 1
Total st 858,817 100 792,152 100

Revenue generated from sales of environmental protection
equipment of the Group amounted to over 98% of its total
revenue. Depending on the specifications and requirements
of its customers, the Group may provide an integrated
set of atmospheric pollution control devices comprising
precipitators, desulfurisation system and/or denitrification
system, or only provide one type of the said atmospheric
pollution control devices on a stand-alone basis towards new
installation projects or upgrading or modification projects.
A majority of the Group's sales of environmental protection
equipment are related to the manufacturing, installation and
sales of electrostatic precipitators.

AREBHHERRRBE LW a5 AW ZE
9BRAL-BIEFHRIERER AEEA S
MEEBAIARKBCERB R —BEARS

R

B BIERER  BImAES R SBEER

g REBERE LR —BARISRIAKE -
AEBMABDHERRRERRE RERRHE
FERERBM-
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BOLNE kv B 23 B

The following table sets forth a further revenue breakdown
of sales of environmental protection equipment by types of
atmospheric pollution control solutions for the respective
years indicated:

TREJAREFERREERRRBNRESR D
M — U AR

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2018 2017
“E-N\§ —E—+F
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARBTT %
Environmental protection RRRE
equipment
Ash removal and transfers BB REBIRE
- Electrostatic precipitator - HERER 537,173 63 542,574 70
- Electronstatic-bag composite ~ —BREAKRER
precipitator 132,711 16 88,836 11
- Bag filter precipitator ~RABRER 71,093 8 44,376 6
- Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash ~HE (MR NERZES)
conveying system) 23,342 3 20,187 3
- S02 and NOx emission reduction —5 > Z &/t Hi I
(desulfurisation and REILMBER
denitrification devices) (B RHEEE) 84,496 10 82,784 10
848,815 100 778,757 100

The Group's revenue for the Year was mainly generated from
sales of electrostatic precipitator and electronstatic-bag
composite precipitator. During the Year, as compared with
the corresponding period of last year, the revenue derived
from sales of electrostatic precipitator was decreased by
approximately RMB5.4 million while the revenue derived
from sales of electrostatic-bag composite precipitator and
bag filter precipitator were increased by approximately
RMB43.9 million and approximately RMB26.7 million
respectively.

AEBRAFENREETEREHEFERER
NMERIEERESS -NAFE - BEAFREAML -
REHEFERESHBEROOARKES AT
B MAREBHEEREARERRESAKRERS
WD RIS AREISIBEETRHARE
26.7A8TTe
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With the experience in delivery of new installation
projects, the Group also provided large scale upgrading and
modification projects for power plants and other industries.
The following table sets forth a revenue breakdown of sales
of environmental protection equipment by types of new
installation project as well as upgrading/modification project
for the respective years indicated:

BREABALRBEBNINER AEE T A%
ERMEMITRERARBARLBCGERE - T
REIIPTREFERIN LKA R ARTHR, &

THE BB D M HERRR AR WA

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F “E—+F
RMB'000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR % ARETTT %
Revenue U 5
Newly installed e 779,208 92 604,296 78
Upgrading/modification &/ s 69,607 8 174,461 22
848,815 100 778,757 100
Cost of sales SHE R A

The Group’s costs incurred in sales of environmental
protection equipment principally comprise material costs,
staff costs, depreciation and overhead costs. The Group's
major raw materials used in the manufacturing process of
ash removal and transfer devices and desulfurisation and
denitrification devices are steel, electrical instruments, filter
bags and others.

The cost of sales of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB7176 million for the Year representing an increase of
approximately 21.0% from approximately RMB593.1 million
of the corresponding period of last year.

AREEHEERRIBAELNKAEZBIEMF
A BTRAFEREEERKA - NEE A
RIBRR KRB IX A B A NS o B i hi 3 B O 32
EBRENEIERMA RN ENES BRER

Ko At

AEFEMBEEN AR EFREBHLHARESI3.1
BETTEMA21.0%EREENHARET71768

B
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Gross profit and gross margin

The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit
and gross margin of the Group (stated as a percentage of
revenue) for the respective years indicated:

ENREFNR

TREINRFAREFEAEENERN REHN X
(CAMEd R B D 25)) AR

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEFE

2018 2017

—E-N\#F T —tF

Gross profit (RMB'000) EM(ARETT) 141,240 199,102
Gross margin (%) EFE(%) 16.4% 25.1%

The Group's gross profit of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB141.2 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB57.9 million or 29.1% as compared
with approximately RMB199.1 million of the corresponding
period of last year. The gross margin of the Group decreased
to approximately 16.4% for the Year. The decrease was
attributable to significant increase in the price of steel, one
of the major raw materials of the products produced by the
Company, during the Year.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group during the Year
decreased to approximately RMB3.7 million, representing
a decrease of approximately 73.6% from approximately
RMB14.1 million of the corresponding period of last year.
Such decrease is mainly attributable to the following:

() The bank interest income in 2018 decreased by
approximately RMB4.5 million from last year to
approximately RMB1.2 million; and

(i)  Compared with last year, the income from
Government grants in 2018 decreased by
approximately RMB6.6 million.

AEBOENHEFRPENHAREI915E
TORLHAREEIOE B IITH29.1%EARFEHR
WARBIM2BB L - AEBAFENTHER
LEN6.4% cZR L EBEHRIME (KQFE
ENERN—EBEIZEMM) EBRRAEEKXIE
ERRATER

Hib i A R FI&

REBRAFROEMPARFIGEEF R
MARBI4TBEETTHAL B D N73.6%EMNAR
BITEETL AL EERAMT

i ZFE-NFHRTHNERAREFRDLH
ARBASAETENARK12BET: &

(i) ZF—\FHNERFHBKALEFHELR
POARE66AET
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Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses of the Year
amounted to approximately RMB20.7 million, representing
a decrease of approximately RMB4.0 million as compared
with approximately RMB24.7 million of the corresponding
period of last year.

(i) The travel expenses and business hospitality expenses
in 2018 decreased by approximately RMB0.3 million,
or approximately 4%, to approximately RMB6.7 million
as compared with approximately RMB7.0 million of the
corresponding of last year.

(i) The bid services expenses in 2018 was approximately
RMB1 million. Compared with the corresponding
period of last year, the amount for the Year decreased
by approximately RMB1.7 million, or 63%, from
approximately RMB2.7 million.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB71.6 million, representing
an increase of approximately 5.3% as compared with
approximately RMB68.0 million of the corresponding period
of last year, mainly due to:

(i) the impairment losses in 2018 increased by
approximately RMB6.8 million from 2017 to
approximately RMB30.6 million, mainly due to the
impairment of trade receivables; and

(i) the research and development expenses in 2018
decreased by approximately RMB3 million from 2017
to approximately RMB3 million, mainly due to the
decrease in the number of technicians employed by
the Group and the related efforts in research and
development during the Year.

Finance cost

The finance cost of the Year amounted to approximately
RMB6.3 million, representing an increase of 79% as
compared with approximately RMB5.8 million of the
corresponding period of last year.

HERDHMAX

AEENHEERDHEAIAEFRENHARE
20 7TEE TRV ARELIOAEBE LEARFENL
ARE20 7B BT

iy ZE-N\EFHNERBMEFRGBHEFER
HHHARB70E8ETHEL - RO ARE
03BEEBLHLLNEN AR TEE L

(i) —ZE-NEFEHNREREEAEHDAREIGS
T AFENSHEEXZFRANNARE
278 BTAL RO HARKITAE TN
63% °

ITHBX

AEENTHREXHEFRENHARESS.0R
BILEMNASI%NERFENNARKE7I6EE
o EERR:

(i) ZZE-\FHREBSER_Z—LFENN
ARE6SAETEZEHNAREKI06EE L.
FTERRE ZFRWHRBERBEMNE: X

(i) ZZE-—N\FHABRERR_Z—+tFRID
PWAREIEETENARBIEE L T2
AR AEBRAFEEFEANEMAER
D RAEEHRENER D

BE A

BMEXNABEFRHOARESSH B LIE M
TONERFEMHNARBGCIAE T
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Income tax expense

The Group's income tax expense of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB15.2 million, representing a decrease of
51.6% as compared with approximately RMB31.3 million of
the corresponding period of last year.

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2018, the trade and bills receivables
of the Group were approximately RMB653.6 million,
increased by approximately RMB34.3 million as compared to
approximately RMB619.3 million of the corresponding period
of last year, mainly due to (i) the acceleration in the launch
of projects, as well as (i) growth of revenue from continuing
operations.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2018, the Group experienced a
decrease of inventories by approximately RMB146.6 million
to approximately RMB324.3 million when compared to
approximately RMB470.9 million of the corresponding
period of last year. The inventories mainly consisted
of steels, filter bags, electrical instruments and other
components.

Liquidity and capital resources
Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2018, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group decreased by approximately RMB31.3 million
to approximately RMB16.4 million when compared to
approximately RMB47.7 million of the corresponding period
of last year, which was mainly due to:

() the net cash outflow of approximately RMB1.0 million
used in financing activities, which mainly consists of
the cash outflow of approximately RMB1.0 million on
proceeds from bank borrowings and repayments of
bank borrowings;

(i)  the net cash outflow of approximately RMB2.8
million used in investing activities of the Group in the
Year, which mainly consists of the cash outflow of
approximately RMB1.5 million on purchase of plants
and equipment to cater for the expansion of the
Group's business scale and the growing sales; and

(i)~ the net cash outflow of approximately RMB27.8 million
generated from the operation of the Group in the Year.

FrEBimx

AEENABRAXAEFRBONHARESS
BETLRAIBIL6%EARFENNARKI2HE
7_Tl0

BEZRURERBERRE

RZFE—N\F+ZA=+—RH FEEHNEHE
WHIBEREREELOAAREEE36BET BE
FRHNHARKEC19.3FE T M ARE34.3
BEIL TEAAELIER B MR X
B EERREIE R

FE

R-E—N\F+_A=+—H AEENTFEY
BARKERUIEETL BEAFRBANHARE
A709BBILRALHWARK1466EETL-FTE
DREMN  BER B HERREMIF-

RBESTRESHR
B RHELEEY

RZZ-N\F+_A=t—B XxEENRET R
ReZBYHRARKICABE T REFRH
MWARBATTAE DRI OARE3IIBEET
TEAR:

() ®BMETHAARSALFEHARE L0
B TEERRITEFRAEFTARERR
TEFHRETHOARKLOBEET:

(i) AKEERAFENRELZHAARDR
FROARK28BE T TE2REAEAR
AEBEBRBEALFEE TR RMA
EBERELRBENRSRONARKLE
BEL: &

(i) AEBREAFENKEMELERSALF
BOANRKE278H B L
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Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2018, the Group incurred outstanding
bank loans of approximately RMB109 million.

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2018, the net current assets of the
Group (the difference between total current assets and
current liabilities) increased by approximately 5.8% from
approximately RMB528.6 million of the corresponding
period of last year to approximately RMB559.3 million for
the Year.

Capital expenditure

No capital expenditures of the Group were used for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment in the Year.

Exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
other than the functional currencies adopted by the units.
Approximately 0.9% (2017: 2.5%) of its sales for the Year
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale. At
present, the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its
exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations. However, the
Group's management will constantly monitor the economic
situation and the foreign exchange risk profile of the Group,
and will consider appropriate hedging measures in the future
should the need arise.

Major acquisitions and disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposals
during the Year.

Significant investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during
the Year.

EE

R-ZE—NF+-_A=+—H KEBHAKRE
BIRTEZRHARKI09BE T

B EEFE
\—7 )-\i—f— ﬂ + El Z’SE@E@//\L@JE‘?
EFE(RYPEERQEERHEABENEZERE)BAE

FRIENOAREL28.6F & ITIE INA5.8% % K
FEMNHARESIIHEE Lo

BEAZ M

REBRAFELTERAREEDE BERLXE
AR H -

SNE J7 i

AEEEBRRZEBRR -ZERB AL EE
UAERTAEEEBE I BB EITIEEME
HoRFEE  REBKH09% (ZT—+F:25%)
MIHE R AL ENATRIEEE LN E BT
EETHEE B ASEEESKEPATER
9 SN B o SR T Z!SE@E’JEEEFH‘—?A SIEES
PR S R AN EE R HMNERBAR TR A
BETERNEEBEE MY IPEE-

EXRBREHESRE
AEERAFERBEEAEAMBRHIESER

EAREEHE
AEERAFERBEETANEARESE
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Contingent liabilities

The Group is neither currently involved in any material legal
proceedings nor aware of any pending or potential material
legal proceedings involving itself. If the Group were involved
in such material legal proceedings, the Group would record
any loss or contingent events when, based on information
then available, it is likely that a loss has been incurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities or guarantees.

PROSPECTS

The Group will actively seek appropriate acquisition projects
to expand its capabilities of research and development,
manufacturing and sales, as well as to access new markets
to complement existing business of the Group.

The Company has now possessed a grade A environmental
engineering design (air pollution control project) qualification
certificate (R AAIRIM TIERAFE (KRSAMEIR)E
B % E ) issued by the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural
Development in the People’s Republic of China (FRZE AR
HFR(EEFIM AR E0) , a grade A air pollution control
engineering design service capability evaluation certificate
(FRARGACERIREBERARBENTIEBES)
and a grade A air pollution control main contractor service
capability evaluation certificate ( & KR5S 632 T 12 4845
BARTERE N FIEEZ ) both issued by Zhejiang Environmental
Protection Industry Association in the People’s Republic of
China, which allow the Company to tender for more projects
in the future.

The Group believes that its established customer base
in the PRC and its exposure to overseas markets could
help it lay a solid foundation for future expansion in both
domestic and overseas markets of the Group and place it
in an ideal position to capture the growth in any of those
markets. Looking forward, the Group will continue to
enhance its research and development capabilities, develop
new technologies and expand our product portfolio (such as
ash conveyers), strengthen sales and capture the growing
opportunities in the atmospheric pollution control solution
industry in the PRC, enhance the Group's national and
international brand recognition, as well as develop potential
overseas markets to expand its international market share.

HZREE

AEE B Y BESTAELREF  TAH
BERERARENFFRIBEEXEREF -
MARBESNZEEXOLRREFT  MAKE
SHEBEAGRCELBERS B SEMARR
BRERAESNENCHRERERAHAFE:

RZFB-NF+A=1T—H AKELELM
ERFRBEHER

ARRE

AEBESEESHRAENRBEEREE  LREAE
BT BUERHERS)  REAFTS  UE
EARSEEEIRAE XK

ARRFBEFARTEARKMBERE MWL ER
MEHNFRRFEILIERAFE (KRRITRDA
TRIBEEFE mPEARAMBENTERRF
EXHEREFNFRARSRAETRERRS
RIGEENFIEZEE MFRARITRGIE TI2HEK
BRGENFEIFE ZFBESARTAEKA
BIZEZIAA -

AEEMRE AEEETFEZINETPERME
BEITSNER FOAKREETRRERRN
SN IEREMRERR YEARBRENEET
MZEMHEENEBVLE - RERK AEH
SHERAMBEN RABFRMEERERE
& (MERFEL) ISR HE MIEERBEARITHR
FraART RITERABENKE REAEHE
AN mENEE - L RFAEEENEINT
BIAEAR AR B BIFR T ISR -
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of nine members, comprising
three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The powers
and duties of the Board include convening Shareholders’
meetings and reporting the Board's work at Shareholders’
meetings, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Group's business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Group's annual budget
and final accounts, formulating proposals for profit
distributions and for the increase or reduction of share
capital as well as exercising other powers, functions and
duties as conferred by the articles of association of the
Company (“Articles of Association”). Each of the Directors
has entered into a service contract/letter of appointment
with the Group.

Executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Yu (325) (“Mr. Bian”), aged 35, is the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director appointed on 28
December 2009. Mr. Bian was also appointed as general
manager of the Company on 15 May 2017 Mr. Bian has
approximately 14 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions. Mr. Bian
has also been the executive director of various subsidiaries
of the Company including Zhuji City Tianjie Installation
Engineering Co., Ltd.* (FEMRRZLETEBRAA)
(“Tianjie Installation Engineering”) and Zhuji City Tianjie
Electronic and Technology Co., Ltd.* (& HKXZEFRIRA
FR /A @]) and Turpan Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* (i
BERZREREBRAAF]) since March 2008, June 2009
and July 2013 respectively.

Mr. Bian has worked as a director of Tengy Group Limited*
(RREBEABRAR)("TGL") since August 2003. He
is responsible for the overall strategies, planning and
business development of TGL. Particularly, he focuses
on the management of the business of the provision of
atmospheric pollution control solutions carried on by TGL
prior to the establishment of the Company in December
2009. From September 2005 to December 2007 he served
in various positions such as general commander and general
manager in different departments in the subsidiaries of TGL
such as Zhejiang Yaoyu Special Steel Co., Ltd.* (/T H
KU AR A F) (“Yaoyu Special Steel”), Zhejiang
Tianjie New Materials Co., Ltd.* (M T RZFH M AR A A])
("Tianjie New Materials”) and Zhejiang Tianjie Magnetic
Materials Co., Ltd*. (HT K2R EMERD AR A R]) which
were principally engaged in manufacturing, processing and
marketing of steel blade and he was mainly responsible for
the overall operation and production management.

Exg

EZSRA-RUTES —BIIFRTEER=
BEUFANTEETHNLGKEEAK -EFTSNE
HWEBEBHE BRRRRE RERAE L#H
SEFENITE EITRERAS LRBHIRE
R EBEEAEENEBAERKRENE  HEAR
SENFEEEMRERE - HIE@ARENSD IR
NIRRT R ARITEARFEBER A
Al ([AASERMA ) FiE ey E gD - Biat

BE - SEFHEEAKETLRBALNEHE

HITES

BRELE ([BEE]) 3B/ RZTEZTAF+Z
A+ N\BEZTAESeXIRANTES 2
EENER - E—+FRATHEAEZEARR
AIAAAEIE o B ERIR B R RSRBARA T R
EBEFTHAFENAFER - BEETE_TEN
FZA ZEEZNFAARE—=ZFLtALS
FEAARARARZENB AR (BIEZEETREZL
ETRARAR ([REZREIR]) HFEWMXZR
BRI AERARMNHEEZERZRERTEREA
A MEITES-

BEER _TE=F\AREEREEEERA
A ([TGL)MES B ETGLA KRB KAE - R 3
MEBER - LER WEARANR_-ZTTNF
TZARMZ 2 AAFIRNERTGLATETERR
HARTRIDABRTRENRES - BN _FTTH
FAREZZZLF+ = RHMS BN TGLAY M
BAR (IR REEMHERAR (AR
) AT RZEFMMRER AR ([ RBHAR])
FANT RZHEM BN AR 2 E)) 89 A F 78T
BESEBG MEREREKE ZFQFE
ERFEE - MIRZEHMA  MEEERZSE
REFETEEEBRRBEEREERE
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He worked as a director in various companies such as
Zhejiang Tianjie General Machinery Co., Ltd.* G/ K2@
Fi## B R 2 a]) (“Tianjie General Machinery”) (being
principally engaged in manufacturing and marketing of
machinery and parts) since April 2008, Shanghai Pingchuan
Metal Material Co., Ltd* (LB FJI€BM EHABER QD
7]) (being principally engaged in sale of metal materials,
construction materials and chemical raw materials) from July
2010 to October 2012, Shanghai Guotuo Mining Investments
Limited* ( E /8B #AE XL E BR A F)) (being principally
engaged in management and exploration of mines and
development of mining technology) from August 2010 to
May 2015, Zhuji Tengy Small Loan Co. Ltd* (#&mHKXZ
NEEE KA AT (being principally engaged in providing
small loan and financial consultancy service in Zhuji City)
from June 2011 to December 2016, and as chairman of the
board of Zhuji City Tianyu Industry Investment Ltd* (&2
TMAFEEKREARMRAA) (being principally engaged in
real estate development and property investment) from
November 2011 to February 2016 and as executive director
of Zhuji City Runtian Property Management Ltd.* (& 2%
MEXRYEEIEEGR QA (being principally engaged in
property management) since September 2011. He was
mainly responsible for advising on operational and business
strategy of the foregoing entities.

Mr. Bian is currently the Vice President of Zhejiang
Association of Equipment Industries for Environmental
Protection (T A IRREBITEMSEES) . He has also
been the deputy officer member* (BlF{EZ &) of the sixth
Electrostatic Precipitator Committee of The Environmental
Protection Industry* (FBIRBREEXM S ERELZE S
FRNEEREZ B ) since February 2014.

Mr. Bian graduated with a bachelor’'s degree in mechanical
engineering and automation from Zhejiang University (3
JTAKE) in June 2005. He obtained his master of science
degree in corporate and international finance from University
of Durham in the United Kingdom in January 2008. He is the
son of Mr. Bian Jianguang, the brother of Ms. Bian Shu, and
the brotherin-law of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan.

Mr. Bian is a member of the family comprising Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Ms. Bian Shu and himself (“Bian Family”) and
the Bian Family is a controlling Shareholder (within the
meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholders”, each being a “Controlling
Shareholder”).

RESMARAATNBEES MG —TENF
P AR KRB AR AR A A ([ XRBE
Al (EERFREREEBMRTN)
A=Z—BELAZ-FT——F AR LS
SBIRARAF (EBRESBIE - REH
HRICERMENE) B2 FF\AE=
T-AFEAR DERAMEREARAR (£
TREWSEERHEARFRRMAE) R A
—B—FANARCB AT AREEDR
ROBERARAA (EERFEFEDR G
HEHRERANRY) EIEF pO-F——
F+—AE-B—AF-AREHEETRTEE
BREARAT (EERFEOENE RYERE)
MEFRER URE-F——FNBEBER
BN BANEERERAN (ERUENEER)
POITIES - (R B B BB RIS RS L

MERREHER

BREREMIARREBTEHEEZTENE
gR-B_T—MNF_AR HNEETERE
REEXHEEREZEE \EEKRELZES
WEIEZEEZE-

BEANR_ZEZAFNAFENNIAR  BE
BMIRENESCRELRBU - RN T NF—
HERBHmAZESEELEReHESEL
BR-RABEREENRE T SHRLLINES
RERERENES-

BELARBREENEL BRLLIREBER
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Mr. BIAN Weican (£ #/£), aged 58, is an executive
Director and the deputy general manager of the Company
appointed on 28 December 2009 and 5 February 2018
respectively. Mr. Bian Weican has approximately 26 years
of experience in the business of provision of atmospheric
pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Weican successively worked in Zhuji County
Mechanical Model Plant* ( 7 & S &2 A ) and Zhejiang
Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection Equipment
Factory* (Wi T B EBH T EXBRZEARK) from 1982
to 1995 in which he was responsible for manufacturing
machinery mould and procuring of raw materials. He worked
as the director of the material procuring department of TGL
from June 1995 to August 2013 in which he was responsible
for the materials procurement planning and management of
suppliers.

Mr. Bian Weican graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School (FEE&REILARAEFLER) in
Zhejiang Province in July 1976.

BEBRELE 8 NN _TENF+ A
“tNBEZE- N\F-_ARABRZERLARF
HITEEREIRKLE - BREEERREHARS
AUDRBRR T RER T HAMBLI26FKER -
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Ms. BIAN Shu (#%), aged 37 is an executive Director
and the deputy manager of the administration department
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 1
June 2016, and has served as the deputy manager of the
administration department of the Company since September
2014. Previously, Ms. Bian Shu worked as the manager of
the human resources department of TGL from February
2006 to January 2010 and was responsible for the human
resources management and administration work of TGL.
She worked as the chief financial officer of TGL between
February 2010 to December 2011 and was responsible for
accounting matters and financial planning and management.
Ms. Bian Shu served as the vice president of TGL from
December 2011 to August 2014, and was responsible for
day-to-day operations and management and to deputise the
president when necessary. Furthermore, she served as the
chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company
(“Supervisory Committee”, each member thereof being
“Supervisor”) from 28 December 2009 to 31 May 2016
and as the employee representative Supervisor from 10
May 2014 to 31 May 2016, and was primarily responsible
for supervising and overseeing the performance of the
Directors and other senior management members of the
Company.

Ms. Bian Shu holds a bachelor's degree of philosophy
from Zhejiang University in June 2003. She holds a master
degree of international business from the University of
Sydney in October 2006. She is the spouse of Mr. Zhang
Yuanyuan, the sister of Mr. Bian Yu and the daughter of Mr.
Bian Jianguang.

Ms. Bian Shu is a member of the Bian Family and the Bian
Family is a Controlling Shareholder.

Birut 37%)12 WITEER AR AT E B
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Jianguang (3##3}), aged 64, is the vice
chairman of the Board and a non-executive Director
appointed on 28 December 2009. Mr. Bian Jianguang has
approximately 28 years of experience in the business of the
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Jianguang successively worked as the factory
director of Zhuji County Mechanical Model Plant* ( #&2% &#
AR AL ) and Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial Environmental
Protection Equipment Factory* (/T & BB ™ T #IIRRK
4 ) from 1982 to 1995 in which he was responsible
for the overall management and business operation. From
June 1995 to August 2003, he served as the chairman of
the board of directors and the executive director of TGL and
he later resigned as chairman of the board of directors and
have been serving as vice chairman of the board of directors
of TGL since August 2003 responsible for the overall
management and business operation of TGL. He worked as
the director of Tianjie General Machinery (being principally
engaged in the manufacturing and marketing of machinery
and parts) from November 1999 to April 2008 in which he
was responsible for its overall management and business
operation.

Mr. Bian Jianguang has been working as the executive
director of Tianjie New Materials (principally engaged in
manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since June 2009 and the chairman of the board of directors
of Tianjie General Machinery (being principally engaged
in manufacturing and marketing of machinery and parts)
from November 1999 to April 2008. Mr. Bian Jianguang
has been also working as an executive director for various
companies such as Yaoyu Special Steel (principally engaged
in manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since April 2016 and Zhuiji City Tianjie Heavy Development
Limited* (REMARZETLHMBMRAF) (being principally
engaged in research, design and development of heavy
machines) since April 2016, and he is mainly responsible for
day-to-day operation and management, and overall business
management in these companies.

Mr. Bian Jianguang is the father of Mr. Bian and Ms. Bian
Shu, and the fatherin-law of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan. Mr. Bian
Jianguang is a member of the Bian Family and the Bian
Family is a Controlling Shareholder.
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Mr. ZHANG Yuanyuan (ER#&), aged 37 is a non-
executive Director appointed on 28 December 2009. Mr.
Zhang Yuanyuan has approximately 8 years of experience
in the business of the provision of atmospheric pollution
control solutions.

From May 2007 to January 2009, Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan
worked as the general manager of Jiangxi Chenyu
Aluminium Industry Ltd.* CIFARFIREABR A F))
(“Chenyu Lvye") which was principally engaged in the
non-ferrous metals processing, production, marketing and
trading of machineries and components, metal products
and components, metal doors and windows and electrical
products, and he was responsible for its overall operation
and management. He has been working as the director
of Zhejiang Tianjie New Energy Co., Ltd. (being principally
engaged in wind power generation and solar power
generation) since May 2008 and was responsible for giving
advice on operation strategy, attending board meeting and
evaluation of business operation and development strategy.
He has been working as the president of TGL since January
2009 and is responsible for the overall management and
business operation of TGL. He is currently the vice chairman
of Shanghai Aluminum Trade Association ( /&8 %173

g).

Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan holds a bachelor’'s degree of applied
physics from Tongji University ([FEAZ2) in July 2003. He
holds a master degree of engineering management from
the University of Technology, Sydney (FEERIE AE) in
Australia in July 2007 He is the spouse of Ms. Bian Shu,
the brotherin-law of Mr. Bian and the son-in-law of Mr. Bian
Jianguang. Mr. Bian, Ms. Bian Shu and Mr. Bian Jianguang
are members of the Bian Family and the Bian Family is a
Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. CHEN Jiancheng, aged 55, is a non-executive Director
appointed on 5 December 2017 Mr. Chen Jiancheng worked
as an assistant to general manager of TGL from June 1995
to January 2000. He served as the vice general manager of
Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.* (WIS F A
fR 2 A]) from June 2003 to December 2008, and became
the chief technology officer (/74225 ) of TGL since January
2004, primarily responsible for technological research and
development as well as product quality control.

Mr. Chen Jiancheng graduated from Zhuji Paitou Middle
School* (FEEMIEIEH2) in July 1979.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Jiannan (BZE#) (“Mr. Li”), aged 41, is an
independent non-executive Director appointed on 18
September 2018. He has over 15 years of experience in
accounting and finance industry in the PRC.

Mr. LI obtained a Bachelor's degree in accounting at
Southwestern University of Finance and Economics, the
PRC in 2001. He is a certified public accountant and a
certified tax agent in the PRC. He is currently the director
of consultation department of Zhuji City Guangxin Certified
Public Accountants Company Limite* (& H EE &A=
R =1 - YNCID

Mr. FUNG Kui Kei Jonas (JFSEE) (“Mr. FUNG"), aged
38, is an independent non-executive Director appointed
on 30 March 2018. Mr. FUNG has more than 16 years of
work experience in the accounting field. He is extremely
experienced in advising on corporate finance matters
including pre-IPO, acquisitions and mergers, and corporate
governance and general compliance issues for listed
companies and private companies.

Mr. FUNG graduated with a bachelor's degree in accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University ( &1 T X
&) in October 2003. Mr. FUNG is one of the founders of
JMD & PME CPA Limited and OCTOSEC CPA LIMITED,
providers of professional corporate advisory to enterprises
in Hong Kong, and has been a partner of the same since
August 2014 and July 2016 respectively. From May 2011 to
March 2014, he worked as the assistant finance manager of
AZONA (HK) LIMITED principally engaged in fashion retail.
From December 2008 to May 2011, he was the auditor of
Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED and subsequently
the assistant manager of BDO Limited (due to a merger
between Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED), which is
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited.
From January 2006 to October 2008, he was the auditor
of BDO Limited. From October 2003 to December 2005,
he was an auditor in CWCC, a professional advisory firm
providing a full range of business services in Hong Kong and
major cities in mainland China.

Mr. FUNG has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA") since 2007 He
has also been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") since 2011.

Mr. ZHANG Bing (3R/&), aged 37 is an independent
non-executive Director appointed on 15 September 2014.
Mr. Zhang Bing has approximately 9 years of experience in
the field of environmental planning.
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Mr. Zhang Bing worked as a lecturer in the School of
Environment, Nanjing University (F R AKZREEFT) in
December 2008 in which he was responsible for teaching
and conducting research. He was promoted to an associate
professor and assumed the said role from December 2010
to December 2013 in which he was responsible for teaching,
conducting research and personnel training, and he later
became a professor and has been working since December
2013 in which he is responsible for teaching, conducting
research and supervising doctoral students. Mr. Zhang
Bing has been the director of the Center for Environmental
Management and Policy of Jiangsu Environmental
Protection.

Mr. Zhang Bing was a committee member and the deputy
secretary of the second committee of the Society for
Environmental Economics of the Chinese Society for
Environmental Sciences (HF BIIRIEEI BB S IRIBLEE S
@) from October 2008 to September 2012 and has been
the director of Chinese Society of Optimisation, Overall
Planning and Economical Mathematics, Energy Economics
and Management* (R EBIBE AR E XML B BRR DL
RIS EEE IR D E ) since November 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained the Scientific and Technological
Progress Award (Second Class)* (RIE R i — F48)
from the Ministry of Education of the People’'s Republic
of China (FZE AR LFMBEHE ZF) in January 2010, the
Eighth Young Scientist Award of the Chinese Society
for Environmental Sciences* (£ N\ EIRER 22
GFERLHE) in December 2012 from the Society of
Environmental Science of the PRC (M EEERI 22 4)
and the Environmental Protection and Scientific Award (First
Class)* (GRBIRERIBEIIT# £ 88 —F48) from the Ministry
of Environmental Protection of the PRC (Fh#E A R M IR
BIRFEED) in December 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained a bachelor's degree in
environmental planning from Nanjing University ( @ & A
) in June 2003 and a doctorate degree in environmental
planning and management from Nanjing University ( E 5K
£) in December 2008.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members,
with two representatives of Shareholders and one
representative of employees. The employee representative
Supervisor is elected democratically by the employees
representative congress, while Shareholder representative
Supervisors are elected by the Shareholders. The term of
office of each Supervisor is three years, which is renewable
upon re-election and re-appointment. The powers and
duties of the Supervisory Committee include reviewing
and verifying financial reports, business reports and
profit distribution proposals prepared by the Board; and
if in doubt, appointing certified public accountants and
practicing auditors to re-examine the Company’s financial
information; monitoring the financial activities of the
Company, supervising the performance of the Directors,
the president and other senior management members, and
monitoring whether they had acted in violation of the laws,
regulations and Articles of Association in the performance
of their duties; requesting the Directors, the president and
senior management members to rectify actions which are
detrimental to the Company’s interests; and exercising
other rights given to them under the Articles of Association.
Each of the Supervisors has entered into a service contract/
appointment letter with the Group.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Xinhua (BR# £ ) , aged 56, is an employee
representative Supervisor and the head of the procurement
department of the Company. He joined the Group on since
2010.

From January 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chen Xinhua served
as the manager of the department of supplies of Zhejiang
Shengjie Environmental Engineering Co. Ltd.* ()T
B2IRRTEABMR A A) and was responsible for the
overall departmental management. From June 2000 to
October 2001, he served as the manager of technology
transformation projects of Tianjie Strip Steel Factory*
(RB#MB) . From November 2001 to May 2003 and
from January 2009 to December 2009, he served as
the procurement manager and vice general manager
of procurement centre, respectively, of TGL, and was
responsible for the procurement of raw materials. From
June 2003 to December 2008, he served as the vice general
manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.* (J#7)T 3L
FRFEMAR AT, and was responsible for assisting the
general manger in its overall operation.

Mr. Chen was graduated from Shaoxing Vocational
Secondary College* (4AEMEE TR & HZEEH) in July 1990
majoring in industrial enterprise management.

Mr. FU Jun (f81), aged 38, is a Shareholder
representative Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18
October 2014, Mr. Fu Jun taught at the school of computer
and information engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang
University G /)T T K2) in December 2009, being a
lecturer and an assistant professor successively, responsible
for teaching and conducting research.

Mr. Fu Jun obtained a bachelor's degree of bio-medical
engineering from Zhejiang University CHITAE) in June
2004 and a doctorate degree in bio-medical engineering
from Zhejiang University ()T X28) in December 2009.
He also completed two years of minor studies in Japanese
language in Zhejiang University )T A£2) in June 2003.
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Mr. FANG Zhiguo (5 J8E), aged 41, is a Shareholder
representative Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18
October 2014, he worked as a post-doctoral researcher in
environmental science and engineering at the Research
Centre for Eco-Environment Sciences of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences (1 B BT &£ REIRIBIFFTH L) from
July 2005 to August 2008, in which he was responsible for
conducting research. He joined the school of environmental
science and engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang University
(T ITREAZR) in August 2008 and became an assistant
professor since October 2009, in which he is responsible for
teaching and conducting research.

Mr. Fang Zhiguo obtained a master degree of science
majoring in ecology from Zhejiang University CGHfiT KZ2)
in June 2002 and a doctorate degree in science majoring in
ecology from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy
of Science (FRERI 2R 55 £ B ) (later renamed as the
University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (B &l 2Bz K
E) ) in July 2005. He was a visiting scholar at the University
of Oklahoma in the United States from June 2006 to May
2008.

Except as disclosed herein, to the best of the knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, there are no other matters relating
to the appointment of Supervisors that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders, nor is there any
information relating to the Supervisors that is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules
including matters relating to directorship held by Supervisors
in any public companies the securities of which are listed on
any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the last
three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. QIU Jinxin (Ef< 38 ) , aged 56, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017 Mr. Qiu
Jinxin worked as a technician and deputy director of Zhuiji
City Fertiliser Factory* (721 IE) (being principally
engaged in the production and marketing of fertiliser) from
August 1983 to July 1993 in which he was responsible for
quality control and equipment management. Mr. Qiu Jinxin
has approximately 23 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

From July 1993 to June 2006, Mr. Qiu Jinxin worked
in TGL with the last position as chief engineer, and he
was responsible for the research and development of
environmental protection precipitator. He worked as the
general manager in Zhuji Jieda Environmental Protection
Equipment Installation Company Ltd* (2 ZERFHR
B ER A A]) (being principally engaged in the design,
production and installation of environmental protection
projects) from July 2006 to December 2008 in which he was
responsible for its overall management and operation. From
January 2009 to August 2012, he worked as the vice general
manager in Zhejiang Oriental Environmental Protection
Equipment Co., Ltd* CINTE S RRZEER Q7)) which
was principally engaged in the technology development and
marketing of environmental protection equipments, and he
was responsible for the overall management and operation.

Mr. Qiu Jinxin has been the vice president of the fifth
Council of the Environmental Protection Industry Association
of Zhejiang Province* I IE RREXHESERLEES
@) since April 2013 and the deputy secretariat* ( B|f#E
£ ) of third Council of Environmental Protection Industry
Association of Zhuji City* (FEEMRRIREEEHETE =
[E¥E =& ) since December 2012. He has also been the
standing council member (F #3225 ) of the ninth Council
of Environmental Science Association of Zhejiang Province*
IMIAREBEREZ2EBFNEESEE) since 17 April 2015. In
December 2005, Mr. Qiu was accredited as senior engineer
by Assessment Committee for Qualification of Senior
Position for Mechanical Engineering Technician of Zhejiang
Province* (I A MM ITIERMAESRBBEEBER
FFEEZ 8 2) . In July 2016, Mr. Qiu Jinxin was included in
the first batch of the expert list of the expert database of
Environmental Protection Industry Association of Zhejiang

Province* (AT IR RREEHE) .
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Ms. WU Fengdi ( RBl3%#) , aged 36, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (“CFO") and Board
Secretary. She joined the Group and was appointed as the
financial manager of the Company on 28 December 2009.
Ms. Wu Fengdi has approximately 14 years of experience
in accounting in the atmospheric pollution control solutions
industry. Ms. Wu Fengdi worked as the chief accountant
of TGL from April 2003 to December 2009 and she was
responsible for the financials and internal auditing of TGL.

Ms. Wu Fengdi completed three years of studies in
accounting at Shaoxing University (#3 @ XX B 23 ) in
January 2008.

Mr. QIU Yonghui ( BBk #) , aged 36, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017 He
joined the Group in July 2008 as the deputy manager of
the technology department. He was appointed as the
deputy general manager of the Company on 15 May 2017,
responsible for the operation of the technology department.

Mr. Qiu Yonghui is a first-class constructor ( —#kEER) and
registered environmental protection engineer ( FFIRIR L2
B ) in China. He focused on developing movable collecting
electrode plate, wet precipitators and high-efficiency
desulfurisation equipment. He had participated in designing
the movable collecting electrode plate for various projects,
including the 2 X 600MW unit of B M ZEERFEEFRAF]
and 2 X 660MW unit of BlE 4% % E FPR A 7). He had also
participated in designing the wet precipitators for various
projects, including the 3 X50MW unit of 78 % P2 E and
12 X 50MW unit of .

Mr. Qiu Yonghui had acted as a technician and participated
in the research and development of a provincial new product
“circulating fluidised bed boiler auxiliary electrostatic
precipitator (fEIR KL R MIBEARLEBKRESS) for large
generator units (300MW-1000MW)"”. This product was
accredited with provincial product certification in 2010.
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Mr. ZHANG Rixing (58 A 1T), aged 50, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed on 5 February
2018. He joined the Group in May 2013 as the director
of marketing. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company on 5 February 2018, responsible
for the operation of the sales department.

Mr. Zhang Rixing graduated from 32 E ¥ M 2K
majoring in accounting in 1986. Mr. Zhang Rixing served
as the sales supervisor of Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial
Environmental Protection Equipment Factory* (/L& &
B I ERRIMEER) from July 1993 to August 1994,
worked as the sales supervisor of #7 L K 2 &% B
fE 2 Al from September 1994 to May 1995 and the sales
supervisor of TGL from June 1995 to April 2003 and was
responsible for day-to-day sales management, aftersale
matters and liaison with buyers. He also served as the
general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co. Ltd.*
(I FAESMAR A F) from May 2003 to February
2008.

Ms. XIN Lingling (¥3}%#¥), aged 43, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed on 5 February
2018. She joined the Group in March 2016 as the general
manager of the Hangzhou branch. She was appointed as
the deputy general manager of the Company on 5 February
2018, responsible for the operation of the research and
development department.

Ms. Xin Lingling was graduated from Shanghai University
of Electric Power (_E/8%E JJ K& ) majoring in power plant
thermal power engineering (B HZELE) /I T2 ) . She is a
senior engineer in China.

Ms. Xin Lingling served as the chief engineer of 31 T T A
MBI HWETIZHMR A A from March 2004 to October 2006
and was responsible for project planning. She served as the
general manager and the executive director of /AR A E
HRIB AR A& from November 2006 to April 2010, served
as the general manager of A1) T FIfRIRE TR AR A7) from
November 2009 to November 2015 and also served as the
technical consultant of XJ Lianhua INT'L Environmental Co.,
Ltd. from April 2015 to February 2016.
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Mr. CHEN Jianguo (BR#Z ), aged 58, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed since 3 May
2010. He joined the Group on 28 December 2009 and was
appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company
on 3 May 2010. Mr. Chen Jianguo has approximately
25 years of experience in the business of provision of
atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Chen Jianguo was responsible for the research and
development of precipitators, installation of environmental
protection equipments and aftersale matters in enterprises
such as Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection
Equipment Factory* (7 B T 2 IRIRZ M LREL) from 1991
to 1998. From June 1995 to December 2009, he worked as
the head of the department of engineering and installation
of TGL and was responsible for the supervising installation
of environmental protection equipment, aftersale matters
and liaison with buyers. He has been working as the general
manager of Tianjie Installation Engineering since December
2009 and is responsible for day-to-day operation and
management, and overall business management.

Mr. Chen Jianguo graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School* (FEZ &R L AR AKLHLER) in
Zhejiang Province in July 1977.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Hon Kit (E#4), and Ms. SHEN Qiong (7t
38) are the Company's joint company secretaries.

Mr. WONG Hon Kit ( E%#t) , aged 29, holds a Bachelor's
degree of Business Administration (Hons) in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Wong
Hong Kit is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over eight years
of extensive experience in finance, auditing and consulting
fields, gaining from an international accounting firm and
listed corporation. He served as the financial controller of
China QOil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 08132), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange from 2011. He worked as a senior auditor in
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2011 to 2015.

Ms. SHEN Qiong (Ji38), aged 34, has been one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company since 1
November 2014 primarily responsible for the company
secretarial and legal matters of the Group. She joined the
Group in September 2014 as a legal officer. Ms. Shen Qiong
has approximately nine years of legal experience in relation
to business operations.

Ms. Shen Qiong worked as a legal officer in Zhejiang Group
Net Environmental Engineering Co., Ltd* (Tt FiRE T
I B R A 7)) (being principally engaged in production
and sales of environmental protection equipment and
machineries) from August 2006 to December 2008 in which
she was responsible for legal and compliance matters. From
January 2009 to August 2014, she worked as a legal officer
and the assistant to the manager in TGL in which she was
responsible for legal and compliance matters.

Ms. Shen Qiong completed a long distance learning course
majoring in law from Southwest University of Political
Science & Law (Fa® EUAARE) in July 2008. She also
obtained a qualification certificate of assistant engineer
in municipal engineering issued by Zhuji City Personnel
Bureau* (FEEM AEE) in April 2010.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company's corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
Board is satisfied that the Company complied with the CG
Code provisions for the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing an effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The
Board established three Board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee” and
collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee different
areas of the Company's affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Weican and Ms. Bian Shu; three
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr.
Zhang Yuanyuan and Mr. Chen Jiancheng; three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Jiannan, Mr. Fung
Kui Kei and Mr. Zhang Bing.

Their biographical details and their family relationships
(where applicable) are set out in the section headed
“Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management” above in this annual report. A list of the
Directors identifying their roles, functions and independence
is available on the Company's website.
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Mr. Bian, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company, is the brother
of Ms. Bian Shu (an executive Director) and the son of Mr.
Bian Jianguang and the brotherin-law of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan
(both are also non-executive Directors). Save as disclosed
herein, there are no other financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships among the members of the
Board.

The Company is committed to the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong element of
independency on the Board, which facilitates the effective
exercise of independent judgements in the course of
decision-making. The Company is also committed to the
view that the independent non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient number, calibre and experience for their
views to carry weight, and that they should be free of any
business or other relationship which could have interfered or
potentially interfere, to any material extent, with the exercise
of independent judgment for the purpose of assumptions of
directorship in the Company.

Mr. Bian is the chairman of the Board, the executive
Director and the general manager of the Company, and is
responsible for overseeing the strategic planning, policy
formulations as well as corporate development of the Group
as well as undertaking the principal decision-making role
in the supervision and management of the Company's
overall operations. The Board meets regularly to consider,
discuss and review the major and appropriate issues that
pertain to the operations of the Company. As such, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken
and the vesting of the roles of Board management and the
management of day-to-day business of the Company in Mr.
Bian will not impair the balance of power and authority. It
is believed that the said balance is ensured by the effective
management of the Board, of which the structure provides
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and
allows for a more effective and efficient business planning,
decision making as well as execution of long term business
strategies.
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The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews its corporate governance
standards. It also decides on matters such as annual and
interim results, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, investment policies, dividend and
accounting policies. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group's
businesses to the executive Directors and the senior
management of which the members should report back
and obtain prior approval from the Board before making
decisions or entering into any commitments for and on
behalf of the Group. In compliance with the code provision
D3.1 of the CG Code, the functions and powers that have
been delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure that they
remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.
The Board also reviews the disclosures herein to ensure
compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access
to the Group's senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's
expense upon their request. Since November 2015, all
Directors have been provided with monthly updates on the
Company'’s performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to effectively discharge
their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment of directorships or other positions
concurrently held in other companies or organisations.
These interests are updated on an annual basis and when
necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
Every newly appointed Director receives an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
rules and requirements.

In compliance with paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code, during
the Year, the Company, together with its legal adviser,
organised training sessions to each of the Directors in
relation to continuing obligations of a Hong Kong listed
company and its directors. In addition, briefings and updates
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements are provided to
each of the Directors during Board meetings to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the Group
to protect the overall interests of the shareholders and
the Group. They serve actively on the Board and Board
Committees to provide their independent and objective
Views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10 (1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing equal to one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10 (2) of the Listing Rules.
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Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
an annual confirmation in writing on his/her independence
to the Company for the Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Group has three non-executive Directors, being Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan and Mr. Chen Jiancheng.
At the annual general meeting convened for the year ended
31 December 2015 and held on 1 June 2016, Mr. Bian
Jianguang and Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan were re-appointed. Mr.
Chen Jiancheng was newly appointed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 5 December 2017.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr.
Zhang Yuanyuan and Mr. Chen Jiancheng are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” above in this annual report. Directors
emoluments for Non-executive Directors are set out in note
8 to the Financial Statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its
defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their terms
of reference are available on the Company's website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.

BB IEBITEBCRIE EMRAIE3N3MEIAE
AFRAAARRRXERANEENFEEB LT H
BRE-BREZSERENAND ARaRAESE
BEVIEFNTESHABY EBVHEB IS X
HEMBRAERTE-

FHUTES

REBRF=FFNTESE" ED SENAEE -ER
BEENBREREE - R —"FA—BE
THBE_ZE—hF+= ﬂ T—RIEFENR
REFARG L BRACERERERELREN
ZE-MEREREFEAR-_ZT—+F+-_HAAH
BITHBREREAG EHEERE-

BENEE EREAERREREENEEF
EHRAFREX[EE EERSREEED
] —f-ERTESNESHS ISR HIR
=HKIFES ©

ZEEEEZEY

EEEHERERZES REZBQRFME
BRENNZRAREEMXK -SEFEXRES
MEKESSMANARERRERE REH
BE -#ORBRE RENBEEENARRHE
s AT ER]

BEREEEE LB ERHRHERAET
HERE EERFERDNGEEEXZERZALH
BR-

Annual Report 2018 4E3§ 43



Corporate Governance Report

\)
PEE RN
(i) Audit Committee (i) B%ZEES
The Audit Committee was established with terms of EZZEEREBELEMRBNEI21MGEREBE
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing EIASTRIZEC. BExFﬁ%EE’JH*ﬂgﬁﬁ.EXi =
Rules as well as paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The BEECHZRBBIIIERNTESANK 55l
Audit Committee consists of three independent non- BIGEELE Eﬁfiﬁﬁ'ﬁi)&?ﬁ%%i 5
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Kui Kei, Mr. Li EREEEABRHEEXERNKSFTEHL
Jiannan and Mr. Zhang Bing. Mr. Fung Kui Kei, who has BR_E—N\FZAZ+HEZTAEX
appropriate professional qualifications and experience ZEGgXFE-
in accounting matters, was appointed as the chairman
of the Audit Committee on 30 March 2018.
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee EZZEeNEIERERERHESTS Y
are to assist the Board in providing an independent THRMIBE NEHEEREREERSES
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting B HE BN 5 B JNEE A SRR B (R IR
process, internal control and risk management BUER EEBHREHBERE URBTESS
systems and relationship with external auditor of the ZRMEMBERET ERBEEMAE
Group, oversee the audit process and perform other EMRHEFERS -
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
These include reviewing the Group's interim and
annual reports.
Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on BEEBEZZEEEN_TE—NF=ZA=-TN
29 March 2019, the Audit Committee has reviewed HETHEE T ?E\AE%F3$EI$
the consolidated financial statements of the Group FEMGETBERE ([MEHEK]) (21
for the Year (“Financial Statements”), including the AEEFEMWEARAIRER)  INEZE
accounting principles and practices adopted by the MARENRE (EPREENEZBIE
Group, the report prepared by the external auditor FRETEFASER) A RINEZ BB ERIE
covering major findings in the course of the audit, and &?E REFE BEREZEGRITHAE
the selection and appointment of the external auditor. Zo R ZEgNES BN FaREEEy
During the Year, two meetings of the Audit Committee T :
were held. The respective attendance records of
individual committee members are set out below:
Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of member REMHA HE/g3KE
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (Chairman) SRS A (L/F) 1
Mr. Zhang Bing SRR LA 2/2
Mr. Jiang Yan (Note 1) E2E (K1) 1N
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (Note 1) EEM At (HaET) 1/1
Mr. Yu Zhao Fei (Note 2) REIFREE (H772) 1/
Note 1: Mr. Jiang Yan and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia resigned as the Wit Z2AERBEMZTE=TE-NF=A=1+
independent non-executive directors of the Company with ARBEEARARARBUIIFNTES TR =-F
effect from 30 March 2018 and they were replaced by Mr. Yu —NF=ZA=THIRBEREREERIFEE
Zhao Fei and Mr. Fung Kui Kei respectively on 30 March 2018 SEBRERSEAEREZEENENEZEE
as the members of the Audit Committee and the chairman of X
the Audit Committee.
Note 2: Mr. Yu Zhao Fei resigned as the independent non-executive Bz REMREEEZT-N\FALATNBEET
director of the Company with effect from 18 September 2018 RARBIIERTEE TR =ZT—\FNA
and he was replaced by Mr. Li Jiannan on 18 September 2018 TNEEBEREEEEHREIERZEZEEGRK
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(ii)

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules as well as paragraph B.1 of the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises three
Directors, namely Mr. Li Jiannan (independent non-
executive Director), Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-
executive Director) and Mr. Chen Jiancheng (non-
executive Director). Mr. Li Jiannan is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration structure
and policy for all Directors and senior management
as well as the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process
for developing such remuneration policy. No Director
takes part in any discussion on his own remuneration.
The Company's objective for its remuneration policy
is to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and fees
paid to the members of the Board, market rates and
factors such as each Director’s workload, performance,
responsibility, job complexity and the Group's
performance are taken into account.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee on 29 March 2019, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to, as well as the respective service
contracts/letters of appointment of, the Directors and
senior management of the Company.
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(iii)

46

During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. The respective attendance
records of individual committee members are set out
below:

RAFEE FMEBERRB1T—ReH - @5
ZEERBEANHFELCEEHIIMT

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of member REHA HE EBRE
Mr. Jiang Yan (Note 1) E2uE (K1) 11
Mr. Zhang Bing SRR A 1/
Mr. Chen Jiancheng PR 3R T ST A 1/1

Note 1. Mr. Jiang Yan resigned as the independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 30 March 2018 and
he was replaced by Mr. Yu Zhao Fei on 30 March 2018 as
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee. With effect
from 18 September 2018, Mr. Yu Zhao Fei resigned as the
independent non-executive director of the Company and
he was replaced by Mr. Li Jiannan as the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee on 18 September 2018.

The remuneration of members of the senior
management of the Group for the Year are set out in
note 8 to the Financial Statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the CG Code and comprises three Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-executive Director),
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (independent non-executive Director)
and Ms. Bian Shu (executive Director). Mr. Zhang Bing
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity,
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board any suitably qualified person to become
a member of the Board, monitoring the succession
planning of Directors and assessing the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee also gives consideration
to the board diversity policy adopted by the Board
in March 2015 (“Board Diversity Policy”) when
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become
the members of the Board, and the Board reviews the
Board Diversity Policy, so as to develop and review
measurable objectives for the implementation of the
same and to monitor the progress on achieving these
objectives.

(iii)
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee
on 29 March 2019, the Nomination Committee
reviewed the structure, size and composition of
the Board and assessed the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors. During the

BREREZEENR _T-NAF=A-TAN
Elﬁiﬁﬁﬁé\éﬁz REZREGCRIEFTEN
REE - ABRANK YO RBIYIFNTE

ENBLHE -RAFE RRELZEBERIT—
ReFE -ERZEEKESENHELHER

INE R °

Year, one meeting of the Nomination Committee was FIanT
held. The respective attendance records of individual
committee members are set out below:
Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of member REESR HE gaRE
Mr. Zhang Bing (Chairman) RIAEE (F/E) 11
Ms. Bian Shu BRI 1/1
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (Note 1) EEWMAL L (AaET) 11
Note 1: Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia resigned as the independent non- HaEr - BEMXLTBE T N\F=ZA=THEHT

executive director of the Company with effect from 30 March
2018 and she was replaced by Mr. Fung Kui Kei on 30 March
2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company's corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management, and the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the
extent of compliance of the Company with the “Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers”
under Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code"”) and
the CG Code as well as the relevant disclosures herein.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required
to hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be
convened and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice
of at least fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular
Board meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least
half of the total number of the Directors. A Director may
attend the Board meeting in person, or appoint another
Director in writing as his proxy to attend the Board meeting.
The secretary to the Board is responsible for preparing and
keeping the minutes of Board meetings and ensuring that
such minutes are available for inspection by any Director.

During the Year, six Board meetings were held and the
respective attendance records of individual Board members
are set out below:

EEEREER

REBEHERADR EFEFARTRIAR
HEFETFARMIFNESES EE "EFE
EHMERARNED TIORBA -

S

If

EEQRRNEEABELRESHE —F-
EENHGHLEELES SR IUEERAZRE
AEERERZRRLFEZC R EF
WERAREMBTETE SR LE XBRZ
FeFk HEMESERN-

REAFE BEFRRTNRGH BANEFENK
BEBEMHFECEEIINT

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of Director EEHA HE BB RE
Mr. Bian Yu BFEE 6/6
Mr. Bian Weican BEREE 6/6
Ms. Bian Shu BRI 6/6
Mr. Bian Jianguang BENEE 6/6
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan EREREAE 6/6
Mr. Chen Jiancheng PR32 5t A 6/6
Mr. Yu Zhao Feitote 2 R BIFR 5T A2 4/4
Mr. Fung Kui Kei KSR E S A 4/4
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRAEAE 6/6
Mr. Jiang Yanhete 7 & = oM 2/2
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celig"ote ’ B A 2/2

Note 1: Mr. Jiang Yan and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia has resigned with effect /i 7:

from 30 March 2018, replaced by Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Yu Zhao

Fei.

Note 2. Mr. Yu Zhao Fei resigned as the independent non-executive director KiaE2 -
of the Company with effect from 18 September 2018 and he was

replaced by Mr. Li Jiannan on 18 September 2018.

Z2AEERBERRLE T - N\EF=A= +EI£%¢
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TR R BRAL
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company convened one annual general
meeting and two extraordinary general meeting which were
held on 15 June 2018, 30 March 2018 and 18 September
2018, respectively. The respective attendance records of
individual Board members are set out below:

TN

RAFEE  ARBADRIR-Z—N\FXA+THBE
“E-N\F=ZA=TRE-Z-/\FAA+NR
BR—RABRRBFRERMAGERRRERARE - @
HIEEEK B EMEFEREHINNT

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of Director EEHA HE BB RE
Mr. Bian Yu BFEE 3/3
Mr. Bian Weican BEREAE 3/3
Ms. Bian Shu BRI 3/3
Mr. Bian Jianguang BENEE 3/3
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan EREREAE 3/3
Mr. Chen Jiancheng PR 32 5 A 3/3
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celig"te ’ B A 11
Mr. Jiang Yanhete 7 & = oM 11
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRAEAE 3/3
Mr. Yu Zhao Fei Mote2 R BIFR 5T A2 2/2
Mr. Fung Kui Kei KSR E S A 2/2

Note 1: Mr. Jiang Yan and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia has resigned with effect
from 30 March 2018, replaced by Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Yu Zhao
Fei.

Note 2. Mr. Yu Zhao Fei resigned as the independent non-executive director
of the Company with effect from 18 September 2018 and he was
replaced by Mr. Li Jiannan on 18 September 2018.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
subject to election at the Company’s general meetings with
a term of office of three years and may be re-elected. The
Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
for the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee shall, in accordance with provisions of the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
take into account the practical situations of the Company,
consider the selection criteria, selection procedures and
terms of office of the Directors, and record and submit the
resolutions to the Board for approval. All newly nominated
Directors are subject to election and approval at general
meetings.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2015. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates is expected to
bring to the Board.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members.
The employee representative Supervisor, namely Mr.
Chen Xinhua, was elected by employee representatives,
whilst the remaining two Supervisors were elected by
the Shareholders. Mr. Chen Xinhua entered into a service
contract with the Company on 1 January 2016, and each
of Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo signed a letter of
appointment on 1 June 2016. Pursuant to the Articles of
Association, the term of office of the Supervisors shall be
three years. The functions and duties of the Supervisory
Committee include, but are not limited to, reviewing and
verifying financial reports and, if in doubt, appointing
certified public accountant and practicing auditor to re-
examine the Company's financial information; monitoring
the business activities of the Company; supervising the
performance of the Directors, the chairman of the Board
and other senior management members, and monitoring
whether they had acted in violation of the laws, regulations
and Articles of Association in the performance of their
duties; requesting the Directors, the chairman of the Board
and senior management members to rectify actions which
damage the Company's interests; and exercising other
rights given to them under the Articles of Association.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
on securities transactions entered into by the Directors
and Supervisors, in order to govern such transactions.
Having made specific written enquiries, all Directors and
Supervisors confirmed their compliance with the provisions
under the Model Code throughout the Year.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Ms. Shen Qiong are the joint
company secretaries of the Company.

Being the joint company secretaries, Mr. Wong and Ms.
Shen serve an important role in ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that the Board policies and
procedures are followed. Both of them are responsible
for advising the Board on corporate governance matters
and facilitating induction and professional development of
Directors.

During the Year, the joint company secretaries of the
Company complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of each of the said joint company
secretaries are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Financial Statements which give a true and fair view of the
Group's state of affairs, results and cash flows for the Year
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA, and the disclosure
requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Company selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently based
on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Board considers that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future and is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events or
conditions that may affect the business of the Group or cast
doubts on its ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited, the
Company’'s external auditor, with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” below in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the establishment and
development of the internal control and risk management
framework, as well as the regular review of the internal
control procedures and policies and risk management
practices of the Group. The Audit Committee is responsible
for advising on and overseeing the internal control and
risk management issues, and assuming an active role in
communicating the best practice in the aforesaid issues
to the Directors and senior management of the Group.
The senior management members are responsible for
the execution of internal control policies and procedures
as well as risk assessment practices implemented by
the Group. Amid the Group's set-up of its internal audit
department, the CFO and the joint company secretaries
of the Group are currently carrying out the internal audit
function and assisting the Board and senior management
to review, maintain and advise on the internal control and
risk management framework and the implementation of the
relevant policies, procedures and practices of the Group.
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The Group's risk management practices are to manage the
risks that it internally and externally encounters. With the
assistance of the whistle blowing policies to be adhered to
by all staff, the Group’s risks could be kept at a manageable
level.

During the Year, the Board or its representatives conducted
a regular walk-through examination on internal controls
and risk management throughout the Group, including
analysing the internal control and risk management system
as a whole, interviewing and discussing with managers on
issues in which their respective departments were involved,
assessing on the effectiveness of policies, procedures
and practices, and taking advices from the joint company
secretaries and CFO.

The Company has plans for submission of an application for
listing of its Shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and, for
such purpose, an external consultant was engaged during
the Year to review the internal control and risk management
framework. During the said review, the overall internal
control and risk management framework were assessed,
with several recommendations made to the Board and
senior management.

The Board also carried out an annual review of the
enhanced internal control policies and procedures as well
as risk management practices of the Group in accordance
with paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions of the Group. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control policies and procedures as well as risk management
practices, and considered that they are adequate and
effective.

The Board, the Audit Committee, the Company's senior
management will continue to review the relevant policies,
procedures and practices in order to maintain a high level of
corporate governance over the operation of the Group.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was appointed as the external
auditor of the Company on 5 December 2017 During the
Year, the fees period to Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited in
respect of its annual audit services provided to the Group
was approximately HK$1.16 million.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company aims to, by virtue of its corporate governance
structure, enable all Shareholders an equal opportunity to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them
to engage actively with the Company. Under the Articles
of Association, the shareholder communication policy and
other relevant internal procedures of the Company, the
Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation in general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Shareholders. The Company encourages
the participation of the shareholders through annual
general meetings and other general meetings where
the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.
The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions
to be sent to the shareholders no less than 45 days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.
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(ii)

(iii)

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages Shareholders to attend
Shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the Company secretary at the registered office of the
Company in the PRC currently at TENGY Industrial
Park, Paitou Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, The
PRC or the principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit T, 6th Floor, Union Industrial Building, 48 Wong
Chuk Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong
Kong.

Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting within two months where any
Shareholder holding, severally or jointly, 10% or more
of the Company’s issued shares carrying voting
rights requests in writing for the convening of an
extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.
The Shareholders holding, severally or jointly, 10%
or more of voting shares at such proposed meeting
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting by signing and
submitting one or several written requests with the
same format and contents and specifying the agenda
of the meeting. An extraordinary general meeting or
class meeting shall be convened by the Board as soon
as practicable upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request. The aforesaid shareholding shall be calculated
on the basis of the date on which the relevant
Shareholders submit the written request. If the Board
fails to dispatch a notice of convening such meeting
within 30 days upon receipt of the aforesaid written
request, the shareholder who proposed to convene
the meeting is entitled to propose to the Supervisory
Committee to convene a meeting. If the Supervisory
Committee has not convened such a meeting for more
than 90 days, the Shareholders individually or jointly
holding 10% or more of the shares of the Company
may convene and hold such a meeting by themselves.
The procedures for convening such meeting should
follow those for convening a general meeting or class
meeting of Shareholders by the Board to the greatest
extent practicable.

(ii)

(iii)
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All reasonable expenses incurred for the purpose
of convening and holding the aforesaid meeting by
Shareholders due to the failure of the Board to hold
such meeting in response to the aforesaid request
shall be borne by the Company. Such expenses shall
be deducted from the amounts due by the Company
to the Director(s) who have defaulted their duties.

(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals at
a general meeting

In overseeing and monitoring the business operation
of the Company, the Shareholders have the right to
put forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders
individually or together holding 3% or more of the
Company'’s voting Shares have the right to put up ad-
hoc proposals in writing to the Company ten days
before the holding of the general meeting, and the
Company shall include such ad-hoc proposals into the
agenda for such general meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be
within the scope of duties of the general meetings.
It shall have a clear topic and specific matters to be
resolved on, and shall be in compliance with relevant
requirements of the laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In 2018, certain amendments were made to the Articles of
Association in connection with the relevant articles of scope
of business and shareholders’ general meeting to reflect
the needs of the Company's development after Listing.
These amendments were duly passed by the Shareholders
at the extraordinary general meetings of the Company held
on 30 March 2018. For details of the amendments to the
Articles of Association, please refer to the announcements
and circulars of the Company dated 12 February 2018. Save
as disclosed above, there was no change in the Articles of
Association during the Year.

The Articles of Association are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-size
precipitators to customers in various industries. During the
Year, the Group mainly offers three types of precipitators:
electrostatic precipitators, bag filter precipitators and
electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial
Statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS

The Group's financial position as at 31 December 2018 and
the Group's profit for the Year are set out in the section
headed “Financial Highlights” above in this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during
the Year and the key factors affecting its financial position
and results are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” above in this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results, assets and liabilities for
the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Five-Year Financial Summary” below in this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited Financial
Statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividends for the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(I) Particulars of the transactions

Hereinbelow are a list of the connected transactions
entered into by the Company or members of the
Group with connected parties that continued upon
Listing and were disclosed in the prospectus dated
24 September 2015 prepared for the purpose of the
Listing (“Prospectus”) with no further changes after
implementation except as provided herein otherwise.
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Description of the transactions
R 5 #t

Inquiry Index
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into a tenancy
agreement which renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed
agreement ending on 31 December 2020 with TGL, as lessor
and the holding company of the Group, with respect to the office
premises with a gross floor area of approximately 2,700 sg.m.
situated at Xinle Village and Xinsheng Village, Paitou Town, Zhuji City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC (“TGL Office Building"”) for use as office
building (“TGL Office Lease Agreement”). Reason for entering into
the TGL Office Lease Agreement was that the Company commenced
the use of the TGL Office Building four years ago mainly as its office,
and any relocation would cause unnecessary costs and disruption.
The annual rental payable by the Company under the TGL Office
Lease Agreement was determined on normal commercial terms
with reference to, and was reviewed by professional surveyors
and valuers independent of the Group to be fair, reasonable and
consistent with, the prevailing market rates of similar properties in
the locality. The Company would have the right to renew the lease
under the TGL Office Lease Agreement subject to compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations of the PRC as well as the
requirements under the Listing Rules. The lessor also granted the
Company an option to purchase the TGL Office Building subject
to the terms of the lease under the TGL Office Lease Agreement,
and such option is exercisable in whole or in part with respect to
such premises. The price of purchase, where applicable, of the TGL
Office Building shall be the higher of (i) the fair market value of the
relevant premises at the time of exercise of the option and (i) an
amount calculated by reference to the net book value of the relevant
premises at the time of commencement of the lease, the rental
amount, the leasing period as well as the Group's financing costs.
The amount of total rental payment to TGL for the Year is included
in note 32 to the Financial Statements. The Group expects the
total rental fees payable to TGL in 2018 under the TGL Office Lease
Agreement to be approximately RMB230,000.

R-ZZE—RFWNA-+HAB  ARa (fEAAFRAA) BAEBEIER NG
TGL (fEAEFE A ) AL R BT & 5 B i SB SE 3T M N ¥ A
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HAZHERZNIERES AR NUFRIFBFERTGLI AKE £
DARERRE AMBBRBEETV BN AR REREKHEH - AR
ARTGLAAZHEHZ TERNNFEERE NE—REEKRRLL2E
EHEEYENENMEEE BUNAEENFEEIS AR REE
MERESTGLHAEHERZ T HERNNEFEHSTRIZESER
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A ()VTHFEREER HEMES QT TENG)ZBEERF IR
AENEEFE e HEMAEEREMRATEMEEE - KAF
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E—N\FREBETCLAAEHERZEMN FTGLNEEZRABLAA
R #230,0007T °

For further details regarding the
TGL Office Lease Agreement,
please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the
Prospectus.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into a tenancy For further details regarding the
agreement ending on 31 December 2017 with TGL, as lessor and the  TGL Industrial Lease Agreement,
holding company of the Group, with respect to the factory premises please refer to the section headed
with a gross floor area of approximately 46,700 sq.m. situated at “Connected Transactions” in the
Tengy Industrial Park, Xinle Village and Xinsheng Village, Paitou Town,  Prospectus.

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (“TGL Industrial Building”)

for industrial use (“TGL Industrial Lease Agreement”). Reason

for entering into the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement was that the

Company commenced the use of the TGL Industrial Building three

years ago mainly for industrial use, and any relocation would cause

unnecessary costs and disruption. The annual rental payable by the

Company under the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement was determined

on normal commercial terms with reference to, and was reviewed

by professional surveyors and valuers independent of the Group to

be fair, reasonable and consistent with, the prevailing market rates

of similar properties in the locality. The Company would have the

right to renew the lease under the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement

subject to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations of the

PRC as well as the requirements under the Listing Rules. The lessor

also granted the Company an option to purchase the TGL Industrial

Building subject to the terms of the lease under the TGL Industrial

Lease Agreement, and such option is exercisable in whole or in

part with respect to such premises. The price of purchase, where

applicable, of the TGL Industrial Building shall be the higher of (i) the

fair market value of the relevant premises at the time of exercise

of the option and (i) an amount calculated by reference to the net

book value of the relevant premises at the time of commencement

of the lease, the rental amount, the leasing period as well as the

Group's financing costs. On 15 March 2017 the Company entered

into an asset acquisition agreement with TGL, pursuant to which the

Company conditionally agreed to acquire the TGL Industrial Building

from TGL. The TGL Industrial Lease Agreement is terminated upon

which this transaction was completed.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company entered with TGL, the holding
company of the Group, into a power supply agreement which
renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed agreement ending on
31 December 2020 (“TGL Power Supply Agreement”), under
which TGL would procure supply of electricity to the Company
in the premises on lease from TGL under the TGL Office Lease
Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement in relation to
daily operation of the Company's office as well as the manufacturing
and processing of goods which include the outer casings of the
precipitators. Reason for entering into the subject agreement was
that the Company commenced the use of the premises under
the TGL Office Lease Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease
Agreement four years ago, and such premises are owned by TGL
and accordingly the power supply services registered with the
relevant power enterprises are in the name of TGL. In light of the
foregoing circumstances, any procurement for alternate source of
power supply would cause unnecessary costs and disruption. Whilst
no additional costs would be charged by TGL, the amount payable
by the Company under the TGL Power Supply Agreement for the
provision of electricity supply was determined on with reference to
the fee scale implemented by the PRC Government. Payment would
be furnished to TGL on a cost basis on 25th day of each calendar
month in accordance with the actual amount of electricity consumed
by the Company of that particular month, and such consumption
amount should be confirmed by both parties to the TGL Power
Supply Agreement by jointly inspecting the readings on the relevant
meters on 5th day of each calendar month. The amount of total utility
payment to TGL for the Year is included in note 32 to the Financial
Statements. The Group expects the total utility fees payable to TGL
in 2018 under the TGL Power Supply Agreement to be capped at
approximately RMB3,800,000.

R-ZE-—RAFONA-—+AR ARAREREEZER QB TCLEI M HE
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WEREESMNK A MARBRBETCLEEHERE N RENO SRR
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PR 49 /% A R #3,800,0007T ©

For further details regarding the
TGL Power Supply Agreement,
please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the
Prospectus.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as purchaser, entered with Tianjie For further details regarding
General Machinery, as service provider and the wholly-owned the Processing Services
subsidiary of TGL, into a processing service agreement which Agreement, please refer to the
renewed on 1 January 2018, the renewed agreement ending on section headed “Connected
31 December 2020 (“Processing Services Agreement”), under Transactions” in the Prospectus.

which Tianjie General Machinery agreed to provide processing

services such as the processing of steel to the Group. Reason

for entering into the Processing Services Agreement was that

Tianjie General Machinery has been providing the Company with

processing services of consistent quality since January 2012 and

that Tianjie General Machinery is familiar with the Group's products

and requirements. Further, due to the geographical proximity

between Tianjie General Machinery and us, the transportation

costs are relatively low. In light of the foregoing circumstances,

the Directors considered it would be in the interests of the Group

to continue its relationship with Tianjie General Machinery on

sourcing of such processing services therefrom upon the Listing.

The amount payable by the Company under the Processing Services

Agreement would be ascertained through its regular contacts with

independent suppliers in order to keep itself abreast of the market

conditions and accordingly to ensure that its engagement with

Tianjie General Machinery for the supply of processing services

would be fair and reasonable as well as in line with prevailing

market practices. Furthermore, before placing any purchase order of

processing services, the Company would also obtain quotations from

comparable processing services that might be available from other

independent suppliers for the purpose of determining whether viable

alternatives of comparable quality could be obtained in a timely

manner and at the most competitive price. The amount of total

processing services payment to Tianjie General Machinery for the

Year is included in note 32 to the Financial Statements. The Group

expects the total service fees payable to Tianjie General Machinery

in 2018 under the Processing Services Agreement to be capped at

approximately RMB8,500,000.
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Confirmation opinion by independent
non-executive Directors on connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors (Note 1)
reviewed all connected transactions as mentioned
above and confirmed that:

(1) Such transactions were conducted in the
ordinary course of business of the Company;

(2)  Such transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or, if transactions available
for comparison were insufficient to determine
whether the terms of such transactions are
normal commercial terms, from the perspective
of the Company, the terms of such transactions
were no less favourable than the terms offered
to or by independent third parties; and

(3)  Such transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing
relevant transactions, which terms were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Note 1: All connected transactions have been confirmed by Mr.
Zhang Bing, Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Li Jianna.
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(Ill) Confirmation opinion from the Company’s
external auditor on connected transactions

Having reviewed the connected transactions disclosed
in this annual report, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
issued a letter to the Board to confirm nothing came
to their attention that caused them to believe such
connected transactions:

(1) not having been approved by the Board;

(2) not having been carried out, in all material
respects, based on the pricing policy of the
Company (if the transaction involves provision of
goods or services by the Company);

(3) not having been carried out, in all material
respects, in accordance with terms of
agreements governing the relevant transactions;
and

(4) having exceeded the caps as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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(IV) Related party/connected transactions in
note 32 to the audited financial statements

64

of the Company for the Year

Out of the list of the related party/connected
transactions set out in note 32 to the Financial
Statements, the following transactions constitute
connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules under which the requirements
have been fully complied with. Details of the said

compliance are as follows:

(IV) KRB EFE

BRI RRME32

7

MEBS BEXS

B MR A2 H MBI T ER 5

VEER THRZEALEMRAE A
ENHEERS YEZHETHEBBRE %
BRFBEIIIT

Type of Agreement for

Whether or not
constituting connected
transaction or continuing

Whether or not in compliance with

d the cc ted ted ti ion Details of the connected the disclosure requirements under
Connected party  transaction transactions (connected relationship)  transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
HERS REBREERSAFE RAERALTHRAE AR
HER k-t HERXSHE HERZ (BERR) HERGHE HRBERE
TGL Lease TGL Office Lease  Continuing connected Lease of premises to Yes
Agreement transaction (a Controlling the Company for use (exempt from the circular and
Shareholder) as its office building the independent Shareholders’

approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the
Listing Rules, having taken into
account the aggregated
annual transaction amount
under the Zhejiang Qinuo Office
Lease Agreement, the TGL Office
Lease Agreement and the
TGL Industrial Lease Agreement
in light of similarity in their nature)

TGL HE TGL#H A= HEBERH RRRAEEYEME 7
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Whether or not

constituting connected

Type of Agreement for transaction or continuing Whether or not in compliance with
connected  the connected connected transaction Details of the connected the disclosure requirements under
Connected party  transaction transactions (connected relationship)  transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
HERS REBREERZAFA RAERALTAAETOAE
HER kil BERS WS HERS (BERER) BERSHE HERERE
TGL Supply of TGL Power Supply  Continuing connected Supply of electricity to the Yes
utilities Agreement transaction (a Controlling Company in the premises (being a continuing connected
Shareholder) on lease from TGL under transaction on buying of consumer
the TGL Office Lease services exempt from the reporting,
Agreement and the TGL annual review, announcement,
Industrial Lease Agreement  circular and the independent
in relation to daily operation  Shareholders’ approval requirements
of the Company's office as pursuant to Rule 14A.97 of the
well as the manufacturing Listing Rules)
and processing of certain
goods
TGL YN TGLE S BREERS RARRREIGLHAZHE =
ES 3 (R—#REKR) HERTGLIEXBERERN (REEEERBNSERERS 1B
TGLEAM Y ERHES B ETRBIE14A7ERER G ETEH
AEADRHBAE AT &) B FEEH A5 BRARBIR
MYERNIETERZE REERTE)
Tianjie General Provision of  Processing Continuing connected Provision of processing Yes
Machinery services Services transaction (a subsidiary of  services, such as the (exempt from the circular and
Agreement a Controlling Shareholder)  processing of steel, to the the independent Shareholders’
Group approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the
Listing Rules)
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The registration of the transfer of Shares will be suspended
from Wednesday, 1 May 2019 to Friday, 31 May 2019 (both
days inclusive) in order to ascertain the Shareholders'
entitlement to the attendance in the annual general meeting
to be convened for the Year (“2018 AGM"). All Shareholders
who wish to attend the 2018 AGM must deliver their
properly completed H Shares transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates to the Registrar of H
Shares in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong
Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 30 April 2019, for
registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group's sales to its five largest customers
and its largest customer accounted for 29.8% and 8.1%
(2017: 34.0% and 12.6%) of the Group's total sales,
respectively.

For the Year, the Group’s purchases from its five largest
suppliers and its largest supplier accounted for 23.6% and
8.0% (2017: 31.7% and 11.1%) of the Group's total cost of
sales, respectively.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates
nor the Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
and belief of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued capital) had any interest in any of the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT, AND
CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress during the Year are set out in
notes 15 to the Financial Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE
RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 92 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of PRC Company Law (B2 &%), amounted to
approximately RMB340.3 million.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2018
are set out in note 25 to the Financial Statements.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates or close associates (as
respectively defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
("SFO") or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of
Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and the Supervisors being in office during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report were as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Bian Weican
Ms. Bian Shu

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Jianguang
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan
Mr. Chen Jiancheng

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Jiannan (appointed on 18 September 2018)
Mr. Fung Kui Kei
Mr. Zhang Bing

Supervisors

Mr. Chen Xinhua (Chairman)
Mr. Fu Jun
Mr. Fang Zhiguo

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of each of the Directors, the Supervisors
and senior management members of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” above in this annual
report.

CONFIRMATION ON INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation on independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
entered into a service contract with the Company on the
respective appointment date.

Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Li Jiannan respectively entered
into a service contract with the Company on 30 March 2018
and 18 September 2018.The principal particulars of these
service contracts and letters of appointment are (a) for a
term commencing from the respective effective dates of
their appointment until the day on which the next general
meeting of the Shareholders for re-election of Directors is
held; and (b) are subject to termination in accordance with
their respective terms.

As required under the Opinions on Further Promotion
of Standardising Operations and Intensifying Reform of
Overseas Listed Companies (Guojingmaogai No. [1999]230),
the Supervisory Committee shall be with external
Supervisors comprising more than half of its composition,
among whom Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo are
independent.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors had entered
into a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors and the Supervisors had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during or
subsisted at the end of the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were set up for, among others, reviewing and
making recommendations on remuneration policy and
scheme for directors, supervisors, senior management and
employees, taking into account salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group.

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme or
share option scheme.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors
and five highest-paid individuals are set out in notes 11 and
12 to the Financial Statements, under which the bonuses
paid to or otherwise receivable by the relevant individuals
form part of the item “Salaries, allowances and benefits in
kind”. During the Year, no amounts were paid to or received
by any of the relevant individuals (i) as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Company and (ii) as compensation for
loss of any office in connection with the management of the
affairs of any member of the Group.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes of the Group are set out
in note 11 to the Financial Statements.
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN RESPECT
OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report, there were no changes during the Year
to any information required to be disclosed by the Directors
and the Supervisors pursuant to paragraph (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and chief executive’'s interest and/or
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions
of each of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures (including
ordinary shares subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi, i.e.
“"Domestic Shares”, and overseas listed foreign shares
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and traded
in Hong Kong dollars, i.e. “H Shares”) of the Company and
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

1. Long position in respect of domestic shares of the
Company (“Domestic Shares”) as at 31 December
2018:
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Approximate % Approximate %

Capacity/Nature Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of Director of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
HERTRERAH LR SNGEN
- 5t/ ERME nERHA KA E 2 (%) HBAE D (%)
Mr. Bian Yu Beneficial owner 13,266,032 13.27 9.83
BFEE EREEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,147 46.17 34.20
corporation (Note 1)
REHEEER (W)
Mr. Bian Jianguang Beneficial owner 6,843,000 6.84 5.07
BRAKE EREEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,147 46.17 34.20

corporation (Note 1)

R EE RS (Hit1)
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Approximate %

Approximate %

Capacity/Nature Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of Director of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
HFERTREREY NG
ESpE 513/ RERtE RNEREE LA E 2t (%) LR E 2t (%)
Mr. Bian Weican Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 1.37
BEREE EREEA
Ms. Bian Shu Beneficial owner 3,933,000 3.93 2.91
BIERT EREBA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,147 46.17 34.20
corporation (Note 1)
REHEEER (W)
Mr. Chen Jiancheng Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 1.37
BREM L& EREBA
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan (Note 2)  Family interest of spouse 50,102,147 50.10 3
BEREBEE (W2) BRI R G ER
Notes: Hiat -
1. According to the disclosure of interest filings, these 46,169,147 1. BEABENERTFEEN ARANZSE
Domestic Shares in the Company are beneficially owned by 46,169,147 N E W ATGLE = H » M TGL
TGL which is in turn approximately 64.08% owned by Mr. Bian BB FREHEEX64.08% M HEZ HBEN
Yu, approximately 22.81% owned by Mr. Bian Jianguang and SEREN281 %R RBHBRZTERD
approximately 13.11% owned by Ms. Bian Shu. Pursuant to 13.11 % B 25 o IBIRFE H R EAEEHIEXVES - 8
Part XV of the SFO, Mr. Bian Yu, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms. FRAE CBENXEARBRIZ TR ABRTGLAT
Bian Shu are deemed to be interested in TGL's interest in the FOARAERPHAER -
Company.
2. Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan, the spouse of Ms. Bian Shu, is deemed 2. ERESEREBKRALINES Bt RIEES

to be interested in Ms. Bian Shu's interest in the Company by

virtue of the SFO.

BB 0 BRE KA RRARBIRLLHE
SEINGESSE SRS
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Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

In respect of the register of substantial shareholders (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) required
to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows
that as at 31 December 2018, the Company had been
notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions. These interests are in addition to
those disclosed above in respect of the directors and chief
executive of the Company.

A Long position in respect of Domestic Shares as at 31

FTERRRAQTNREG RAEAER D HE
B RKRE

RIBEE LB GO EXVEBEI36IGRERFTE
MEIERR(AFARFEFTHSRITHAER)
ZMAREE R T N\F+_A=1t—H &
REEATIERRROER FOXR -t FHEam
Y RBHEAERBENRRAREERSRITRAE

Sz
AR ©

. RZFE-NEFZA=1—HRAERFF

December 2018: BHHILLE -
Number of Approximate % Approximate %
Capacity/Nature Domestic  of total issued of Company's
Names of interest Shares Domestic Shares share capital
EE BT LoF N
RNEREZH &N
B/ E 517/ REmitE RERHE HHABIHE((%) BMABDSE(%)
TGL (Note 1) Beneficial owner 46,169,147 46.17 34.20
TGL (#tat1) ERBEEA
Ms. Bao Guo (Note 2) Family interest of spouse 59,435,179 59.44 44.03
Bt (f152) LB H R kR
Ms. Xu You (Note 3) Family interest of spouse 53,012,147 53.01 39.27
Reh &+ (H153) LB H R kR
BRGILRFEREEE)I  Beneficial owner 5,727,200 5.73 4.24
R AR E ERBEEA
(BER&%)
MMNEREEREE Beneficial owner 5,318,200 5.32 3.94
(BRER) ERBEEA
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Notes:

Long

TGL is directly interested in approximately 34.20% in the
Company.

Ms. Bao Guo, the spouse of Mr. Bian Yu, is deemed to be
interested in Mr. Bian Yu's interests in the Company by virtue
of the SFO.

Ms. Xu You, the spouse of Mr. Bian Jianguang, is deemed to be

interested in Mr. Bian Jianguang's interests in the Company by
virtue of the SFO.

position in respect of H Shares of the Company

(“"H Shares ") as at 31 December 2018:

Byt

1. TGLE B A A A F14134.20% K 4 2

2. RESHBHEE SEL+ GEFELHE
8) WA T £ AR AR AR EA

3. RIBESFRAEG Rt GERAELER
BB MR RARBE A EFAFNARRAERTD
AR

R-ZFE—-NF+ZA=1+—HHLRGHE
([HBR ) B B4 E -

Approximate %  Approximate %

Capacity/Nature Number of of total issued of Company'’s
Names of interest H Shares H Shares share capital
HERT N
HER 21 &N
2B/ KA ELVR 13- Hik &R BROBEDL(%)  BMOBED(%)
Shou Erjun Beneficial owner 6,000,000 1714 4.44
S85 ERBEEA
Hong Kong Joint Beneficial owner 5,297,000 15.13 3.92
Financial Investment Ltd EREAA
Zhao Kaiyuan (Note 4) Interest in a controlled 5,297000 15.13 3.92
IR (Hi4) corporation
FH)% B
Notes: HiaE -
4. Mr. Zhao Kaiyuan, the controlling shareholder of Hong Kong 4. R % &£ BHong Kong Joint Financial

Joint Financial Investment Ltd, is deemed to be interested in
Hong Kong Joint Financial Investment Ltd's interests in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.

Investment LtdiZARARER - ARIEFE FH KA E 501 -
8 B 2% 4 348 AR Hong Kong Joint Financial
Investment LtdFTHRF A9 AN A RIEm P HE G o ©

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd ¥ iT. K ¥ B3R B B4y A7 B 2 w)



Directors’ Report

B AL,

PURCHASE, SALES AND REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

From the date of listing of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange up to 31 December 2018, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the PRC Company Law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro rata
basis to the existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company maintained the minimum public float of 25%
as required under the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms. Bian Shu (the
Controlling Shareholders) has confirmed to the Company
that he/she has complied with the non-compete undertaking
given by them to the Company on 20 October 2014. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and enforcement of the non-compete
undertaking and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with for the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

For the Year, the Company complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance is known to the Directors to be
pending or threatened against the Company.

POST-YEAR SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

There were no significant events occurred or arising after
the Year with respect to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
report matters including the review of the Financial
Statements.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements have been audited by Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as auditor of
the Group is to be proposed at the 2018 AGM.

By order of the Board

Bian Yu
Chairman

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 29 March 2019
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In 2016, the current session of the Supervisory Committee
was established in accordance with the PRC Company Law
and resolutions of general meetings. The current session of
the Supervisory Committee comprises three Supervisors,
namely Mr. Chen Xinhua, Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo.

In the Year, for the Company’'s long term interests and
Shareholders’ interests, the Supervisory Committee
acted in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, the Articles of Association
and Listing Rules and earnestly performed their duties
of supervision as to the acts of the Directors and senior
management of the Company. The main area of work of the
Supervisory Committee in 2018 is summarised as follows:

. MEETING CONDUCTED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee convened two meetings
in the Year.

. WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The work of the first session of the Supervisory
Committee mainly comprised the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of
resolutions of the general meetings

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over and inspection of the
implementation of the resolutions in general
meetings by the Board and the senior
management through observation and
attendance at the Board meetings and general
meetings. The Supervisory Committee is
of the opinion that the Directors and senior
management of the Company have diligently
performed their duties in compliance with
resolutions of the general meetings. No
violation of any laws or regulations or Articles
of Association or any act which jeopardises the
interests of the Company or Shareholders has
been found in the performance of the Company’s
Directors and senior management.
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Inspection over legal compliance of the
Group’s operations

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision on a regular basis over the legal
compliance and rationality of the Group’ s
operation and management in its ordinary
work. It has also exercised supervision over
work performance of the Board and senior
management. The Supervisory Committee is
of the opinion that the Group's operation is
sound and rational, and is in compliance with
all applicable laws, regulations and rules and
the Articles of Association. The members of the
Board and senior management of the Group have
conscientiously and diligently performed their
duties, and none of their act would prejudice the
interests of the Group or the Shareholders.

Inspection over the Group’s daily
operating activities

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over the Group’s operating activities.
The Supervisory Committee is of the opinion
that the Group has maintained a sound internal
control system and made a great progress in the
formulation and implementation of its internal
work procedures, thus effectively controlled its
exposure to various operating risks. The Group's
operation is in compliance with the PRC laws and
regulations and the Articles of Association.
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4. Inspection over the Group's financial 4. BREFRFENET KRR
condition
The Supervisory Committee reviewed the EEeEl Rk BEERRE
Financial Statements, supervised and inspected REBEBHBITHEBMEECR KL
the Group's implementation of relevant financial BERARAE B & E R BN AR
policies and legislations as well as details HER - EEGRA  UHREKERT
on the Group's assets, financial income and f R A R B Y B TS AR O R AR AR

expenditure. The Supervisory Committee is of
the opinion that the Financial Statements fairly
reflected the Group's financial position and
operating results.

Looking forward, the Supervisory Committee REANR EFgHEERSIEZREAE
will continue to carry out its duties in strict HMERMANFMEREERERER BT
compliance with the Articles of Association and HE BRI -

the relevant laws and regulations and protect the
interests of the Shareholders.

Chen Xinhua EEXetE

Chairman of the Supervisory Committee B &

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 29 March 2019 RENIEFEEN T —hF=H
—+ANH
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To the shareholders of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd

AT RZIRB R AR A A

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 85 to 147 which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2018, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

(i)

Inventories

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of inventory for
impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of inventory of
RMB324,280,000 as at 31 December 2018 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group's impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group's procedures on ordering
and holding of inventory;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing the marketability of the inventory;

- Assessing the budget cost of inventory;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventory;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the
inventory; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the
inventory.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
inventory is supported by the available evidence.
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(ii) Trade and bills receivables

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial

statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills
receivables for impairment. This impairment test
is significant to our audit because the balance of
trade and bills receivables of RMB653,581,000 as at
31 December 2018 is material to the consolidated
the Group's
impairment test involves application of judgement and

financial statements. In addition,
is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting

credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and

transaction history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the debts;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the

customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's
exposure to credit risk in the consolidated

financial statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
trade and bills receivables is supported by the available

evidence.

(ii)
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’'s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The other
information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Hit&E#

BERAES (B8] AHEMBENAEE -EME
HERE BEARFHRANMEER BTEKELR
BUBHRRLBEENRUMN RS - LM E A
RAZBENRE R RRERTES-

=Ry

BEEHRAVBRERNERL TREREMER
BEENTERMBEREMEANETER

RESEAGAMBREAME EENEETAE
RS EX BRI E M ER S HELMER X
EUdiRT EREMEHNES BGEMBHEK
RESHEBEHERTHTENENFEEANEE
HUFFEEABERRANBER

EERGEVBBRARENEE

EFARRARBELGTARSRMONET BN
BEEARBFEAARPINBEERERUEER
REPNFEEFBHRER REBEETR AL ENK
FNEEF NEARENGEEP BRI TEFRE
EAAT B O R RE X 88 R T B BN ) B K S AR R At

ERESAMBHRRE EFRAMNE E5H
FEKENREN YHEBERBL T RERFEL
LERNFR URERAFELLERSTER
RIEFEER EEEBRIAFELLE F5
BEMOEROERTR-

Annual Report 2018 4E3§ 83



Independent Auditor’s Report

¥ 1A B il

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor's report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06353
Hong Kong, 29 March 2019
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE _FE-N\F+_A=1—HIFFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARET R ARBFT
Revenue W 6 858,817 792,152
Cost of sales 8 XA (717577) (593,050)
Gross profit E7H 141,240 199,102
Other income H A 7 3,726 14,109
Distribution and selling expenses DIERHEERT (20,690) (24,707)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (71,580) (67969)
Other expenses Hmmk (10) (231)
Finance costs A& P AR 9 (6,278) (5,821)
Profit before tax BiAE R 46,408 114,483
Income tax PS5 10 (15,172) (31,319)
Profit and total comprehensive EAREEAELRER
income for the year attributable wAREZEWA#LE
to owners of the Company M 31,236 83,164
Earnings per share BRAEF 14
Basic and diluted (RMB per share) HEARE#E
(BRAREK) 0.23 0.62
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B 55K DL A%

At 31 December 2018
_R—F—NF+=—H=+—H

At At
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZE-N\E RZZE—+F
+=A=+—-8 |+tZA=+—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
iz AR¥T T ARETTT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BWE MRiE 15 81,629 86,906
Prepaid land lease payments BN E A 16 43,020 45,001
Intangible assets BVAE 17 193 389
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 26 33,887 25,479
Deposit paid for intangible asset BENEREEZSE 1,292 =
Pledged deposits BHEBFR 22 1,871 3,577
161,892 161,352
Current assets REEE
Inventories rE 18 324,280 470,939
Trade and bills receivables HoRWFIEREREER 19 653,581 619,345
Contract assets & cost EREEMRKAE 20 261,028 193,201
Prepaid land lease payments BN T ERIE 16 1,981 1,981
Prepayment, deposits and ENRIE ek
other receivables H b fE U SR I8 21 45,771 44,544
Tax receivable e W HR 18 - 14,323
Pledged deposits BEEFFR 22 39,323 86,169
Bank and cash balances RITRIRSERR 22 16,432 47706
1,342,396 1,478,208
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables B ENFERENEE 23 363,337 419,709
Contract liabilities aRaE 20 202,284 310,482
Other payables and accruals HMENFKERESER 24 108,185 109,379
Bank loans RITEX 25 109,000 110,000
Tax payable FERT IR 256 =
783,062 949,570
Net current assets REBEERE 559,334 528,638
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BT IR DL A%

At 31 December 2018
R-_FE—NF+-HA=+—H

At At

31 December 31 December

2018 2017

R-B-N\&F R-E—LF

+=A=+—-8 |[+t-A=+—8

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

k=3 ARET T ARETIT

Total assets less current liabilities ZEEZLERABHERE 721,226 689,990

NET ASSETS EEFE 721,226 689,990
Capital and reserves EAXR#EE

Share capital fi& 7% 27 135,000 135,000

Share premium & 10 = B 239,064 239,064

Reserves {1 28 (a) 347,162 315,926

TOTAL EQUITY B 721,226 689,990

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 147
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

BianYu

BF

Bian Weican
BRI

FEEFUTEMEMNGAUBHRRER ST
—NEZAZTHhBEZESSit & RIRER
WHTIHEERREE:
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG LN
Statutory Safety
Share Share surplus  production Retained

capital premium reserve reserve profits Total

B REEE
kx  RGEE  EREE B REE 2]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2017 RZF-+F-A-A 135,000 239,064 27614 5,408 199,740 606,826
Total comprehensive income for the year ERPANAEE - - = 5 83,164 83,164
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve PERETEYER - - 7752 - (7752) 5
Appropriation to safety production reserve PREREEERE - - - 598 (598) -
At 31 December 2017 R-Z-t§+-A=1-H 135,000 239,064 35,366 6,006 274,554 689,990
At 1 January 2018 R-E-\E-F-H 135,000 239,064 35,366 6,006 274,554 689,990
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZANALE - - - = 31,236 31,236
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve YRTATRREE - = 3172 5 (3,172) S
Appropriation to safety production reserve YRERREERE - - - 855 (855) -
At 31 December 2018 R-E-\E+-B=1-H 135,000 239,064 38,538 6,861 301,763 721226
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Bl R

For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR T T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHHRERE
Profit before tax 754 A v A 46,408 114,483
Adjustments for: BLUA TR IBFE
Finance costs BB A A 6,278 5,821
Interest income FIEWA (1,197) (4,528)
Foreign exchange difference, net HINE 2= REVFRR (258) 706
Depreciation on property, Y- -BEREZBITE
plant and equipment 6,756 6,466
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEH 196 185
Amortisation of prepaid land TE{ b F B A 8
lease payments 1,981 1,619
Impairment loss on property, Y BE KR EREESE
plant and equipment - 5,694
Impairment loss on trade receivables SR IEREEE 30,592 23,798
Impairment loss on bills receivables ERERRAEREE 4,573 =
Impairment loss on other receivables H fib B W I RE B 18 159 465
Operating cash flows before working EEECEFIINLE
capital changes ReneE 95,486 154,709
Change in inventories GFE#® 146,659 39,427
Change in trade and bills receivable Z 5 FE R IE K I
E3t4 40 (69,399) 16,895
Change in prepayment, deposits and BRI Re REM
other receivables FE Y5k TE (1,386) (1,449)
Change in trade and bills payables B S RN FERERS
ZIEED (56,372) (45,707)
Change in contract assets HREEZD (67,827) (39,617)
Change in contract liabilities HRABEED (108,108) (68,848)
Change in other payables and accruals HAth B A SR8 R E T
EREF (1,194) (14,528)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &% (FrAR),/
FrEEXR® (62,231) 40,882
Interest received B U F B 1,197 4,528
Interest paid =R (6,278) (5,821)
Tax paid B RIE (9,001) (36,583)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KETEE (FiA) FREXE
operating activities REeFH (76,313) 3,006
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHRERE
Acquisition of a subsidiary g B8 — R B B A A - (829)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & E Y12 - Bi=E M % B (1,479) (63,363)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEmE- W% T
plant and equipment Fr 185K - 1,753
Purchase of intangible assets E%E\ﬁﬁ/ﬁﬁ - (299)
Addition of prepaid land lease payments FrigIEft R E 2oE - (28,531)
Deposit paid for intangible asset BENEREERS (1,292) -
Change in pledged deposits BEBTRE 48,552 (25,155)
Net cash used in investing activities REZEBFTAESFEE 45,781 (106,424)
Cash flows from financing activities MEITBHRESRE
New short-term bank loans raised IR HRITE R 185,200 123,000
Repayment of bank loans EBERITER (186,200) (132,000)
Net cash used in financing activities MEETBFARSFE (1,000) (9,000)
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRESEEYRL FE
equivalents (31,532) (112,418)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYRERREEEY
beginning of year 47,706 160,830
Effect of foreign exchange rate bR F B s )55
changes, net 258 (706)
Cash and cash equivalents FERASRRESEEY
at end of year 16,432 47706
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BERBEEEBEYWIF
Bank and cash balances RITRIRES B 16,432 47706
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") as a joint stock company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office
is TENGY Industrial Park, Paitou Town, Zhuji City,
Zhejiang Province, PRC. The Company's shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were principally engaged in design,
development, manufacturing, installation and sale of
environmental pollution prevention equipment and
electronic products. The principal activities of the
Company'’s subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
(the “Directors”), Tengy Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC, is the holding company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “"HKICPA")
that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2018.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption
of these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting policies,
presentation of the Group’s financial statements and
amounts reported for the current year and prior years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

2.

92

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application
of these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on
the financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, issued by the
HKICPA and the applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgments and areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to these consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

2.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

BE-F—\E+-AZ+—HILEE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are
entities over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it
the current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e.
activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that
right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

3.

94

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting
period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company's presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated
at the exchange rates on the transaction
dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve.
When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their revalued
amounts less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Plant and machinery 9.50%
Office equipment 19%-31.67%
Motor vehicles 23.75%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses.

Patents and computer software are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years and 3 years
respectively.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets to the Group are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of all production
overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has
not retained control on the assets. On derecognition
of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’'s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on
a trade date basis where the purchase or sale of an
asset is under a contract whose terms require delivery
of the asset within the timeframe established by
the market concerned, and are initially recognised at
fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs
except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the
following category:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables)
are classified under this category if they satisfy both of
the following conditions:

(a) the assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(b) the contractual terms of the assets give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less loss allowance
for expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses on financial assets at amortised cost
and contract assets. Expected credit losses are the
weighted average of credit losses with the respective
risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument
at an amount equal to the expected credit losses
that result from all possible default events over the
expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables and
contract assets, or if the credit risk on that financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses
(Continued)

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk
on a financial instrument (other than trade receivables
and contract assets) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount
equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that represents the expected credit losses that result
from default events on that financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to
adjust the loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period to the required amount is recognised in profit or
loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of
cash and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract
that evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after
the end of the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration
is adjusted for the effect of a significant financing
component.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied
over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave and long
service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the at the end of the reporting
period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time
of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other
than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will be
received.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in
profit or loss because it excludes items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
seftled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(i) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent of
the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the Group.
If the Group is itself such a plan, the
sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

FESHE (#)

Bt S (&)

(b)

& TIMERGRM BB EAE
.ﬁ%aﬂﬂ}"

(i)

(ii)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

I it

Il D» ?-ﬂ%

RAARBR—£®
A(NEFAT HWEL
% B & M B A 7 45 1 RS 5 B

4k
gk ) ©

/

3

—HERAES —FEN
i/\M/JE%(%%—
REMEBETKE QR
DNEIKBERE) -

EHF'EJ}EE?J’]Z%I—J E=ZTTHARE

_Im
]
o
Fliy
W
N
5B
[
S o)
S
B >

e
7

5 e
- 3
S i
|
it
e 1]

R
T
I
4l

o /!

B RSB sl B G A

?MEE%J@&_*LE’J%’EH%E
AN EA S B EZA
BB ETREAEER

PR 3

?

ot B ot 5
p=[IT3
Lo

N .
=

i
o =0

o /

X (a) B FT AR A LB
A4l o

o
E ?ﬁ“ﬁ%

R@)BEMBEMATHERESE
K& iﬂﬂz%uxaaa(ﬁﬁﬁ
MEBRR)T2EEEKE -

ZER (HEB(MZEBAE
TRE)AEMKERTE)R
RAHARANE AFRMHE
EEAERS

Annual Report 2018 4E38 107



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A 13 S A Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2018

3.

108

B2 —F— )\ F+-_A=1+—HIFEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets other than investment, inventories
and receivables, to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of any impairment loss.
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-
generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below.
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4.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continuead)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been
changed.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. The identification of
bad and doubtful debts requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the
trade and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses in the year in which such estimate has
been changed.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recoginsed,
based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future
tax planning strategies. Further details are
contained in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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4,

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(@)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group's property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The
Group will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives and residual values are different to
those previously estimated, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment and investment
property are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end date based
on changes in circumstances.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuec)

(a)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of
the Group entities. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets
and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign
currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without
the specific approval of the executive directors.

The credit risk of the Group's other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, and other
receivables, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no
requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by analysis by
customer/counterparty. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group
as the customer bases of the Group's trade
receivables are widely dispersed.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits
and other receivables are disclosed in notes 19
and 21, respectively, to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group considers whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk of financial
assets on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period by comparing the risk of
a default occurring as at the reporting date
with the risk of default as at the date of initial
recognition. It considers available reasonable
and supportive forwarding-looking information.
Especially the following information is used:

internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the borrower’s ability
to meet its obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the borrower;

- significant changes in the value of the
collateral or in the quality of guarantees or
credit enhancements; and

- significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
borrower, including changes in the payment
status of borrowers.

5. IRARER &)
(b) EERMR (&)

ERASEASZNKE E S EKKIA
NEWREARBNTIE H2RE
EMKIENEERROE—FEL
BUR D B BENAR A M S IR MEE19
K21

AEEBBL RS RAENRE OB
2 H BB B R ERE B2
wER - T REE Y EHAR
BT R I R A
0o A 42 5 AT 3 & T R A 24
S 2 AR R R R A TR
B

- REMEERA:

- TEHESBERABRTEERIL
REXEH X5 VIEHEHE
AR 2 B B sk 78 B & K F &
& ;

- BRAGEREERAESE
28

- ERREEIERIJUEERTHE
ZEREAES: &

- ERABBRRRTAZEA
B8 BIEERAZ M RRRE
@JO

Annual Report 2018 4E# 113



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A 13 S A Mk

For the year ended 31 December 2018

B2 _F—N\FE+_H="+—HIFEF

5.

114

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 5. BIEERERE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERR (&)
The Group uses two categories for non-trade AEBBIBEIUHENRKER D B
loan receivables which reflect their credit risk MEER UREREEERRRET
and how the loan loss provision is determined SHEANEFEBEBEN TR -NEE
for each of the categories. In calculating the TEHREEBEXRR AEEZESE
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers BIBE BB E R ATIE BURETTH
historical loss rates for each category and adjusts o
for forward looking data.
Category Definition Loss provision
k2 B B EE
Performing Low risk of default and 12 month expected losses
strong capacity to pay
E=E E AR B EE08 1218 A TE HAES 18
Non-performing Significant increase in credit risk Lifetime expected losses
TR EE Rk AN N FHITR AR 1B
Others Total
Hit #st
RMB RMB
AR AR
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE—NF
+=A=+-—8
Advance and deposit BRRFK 22,544 22,544
Provision for loss allowance E iR EERE (2,315) (2,315)
Carrying amounts REE 20,229 20,229
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+—H
Advance and deposit ELE YN RERN 26,654 26,654
Provision for loss allowance EREERE (2,156) (2,156)
Carrying amounts FREE 24,498 24,498

All of these advance and deposit are considered
to have low risk and under the ‘Performing’
category because they have a low risk of default
and have strong ability to meet their obligations.

B EBHRR A7 AR A EE L
B [ES ]8R REERKRENE
HERIE R BITEEAEE R
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continvea) 5. B IEEEEE (4)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERMR (&)
Others Total
Hith et
RMB RMB
AREE AREE
Weighted average expected credit Ji#EFHBEEE R B X
loss rate
2018 —E-N\E 10%
2017 —E—tF 8%
Loss allowance at 1 Jan 2017 RZE—+tF—HA—HK
EiREE 1,691 1,691
Increase in provision in 2017 RZFE—F AR FE N 465 465
Loss allowance at 31 Dec 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=+—HH
E R 2,156 2,156
Increase in provision in 2018 R — N\ A F & 38 0 159 159
Loss allowance at 31 Dec 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=+—8H
B8 2,315 2,315
The increase in loss allowance is due to increase EEEEE I ANEREEEEX

(c)

in expected credit loss rates

Liquidity risk

(c)

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. All of the Group's financial liabilities

are due within one year.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial

liabilities is as follows:

5. BIkEKREE

e )
(c) RBEZRR (&)

AEEERBENDHESFMOT

Carrying amounts

Total contractual

undiscounted cash flow

REE BRFEBRERELE

Total Total  Less than 1 year
&3t &it HME
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETR ARET R

31 December 2018 —E-\F+-A=1+-H
Trade and bills payables EORATERENER 363,357 363,337 363,337
Other payables and accruals EtERTEREGER 108,185 108,185 108,185
Bank loans RITER 109,000 11,230 11,230
580,522 582,752 582,752

31 December 2017 “E—+F+-A=1+—H
Trade and bills payables BORNTERENRE 419,709 419,709 419,709
Other payables and accruals HEthERFERESER 109,379 109,379 109,379
Bank loans RITER 110,000 113,236 113,236
639,088 642,324 642,324

(d) Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank deposits and bank borrowings
bear interests at fixed interest rates and
therefore are subject to fair value interest rate

risks.

(e) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continvea) 5. B IEEEEE (4)

(f) Financial instruments by category () REREINEHITE
The carrying amounts of each of the category of AEESER 2T ARREHRD
the Group's financial instruments at the end of BREEWNT

the reporting period are as follows:

2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT AR T T
Financial assets THEE
Financial assets at amortised REHEN AT ENRR
cost (including cash and cash BEE(BREHREe R
equivalents) ReEEY) 729,727 780,157
Financial liabilities NN
Financial liabilities at R AT ER
amortised cost SREAE 580,522 639,088
6. REVENUE 6. Wz
The Group's revenue represents sales of REBNREEAFERRERHEERRS
environmental protection equipment for installation AP RETEMIIRRBEHEE  iH
and sale of environmental pollution prevention EMHENBEZEEEMMRHERENER-

equipment and electronic products; the invoiced value
of materials sold and the value of services rendered
during the Year.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT AR T T

Sales of environmental protection HERIREK
equipment 848,815 778,757
Sale of materials HEME 8,002 12,943
Rendering of services R 2,000 452

858,817 792,152
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6. REVENUE (continued)

118

Disaggregation of revenue from sales of
environmental protection equipment:

6. W& (&)
DR EBRBENRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Geographical markets B 5
Mainland China B A D 840,786 759,189
Other countries HEMBER 8,029 19,568
Total #5t 848,815 778,757
Major products FTEEM
Electrostatic precipitator BB ERS 537,173 542,574
Electronstatic-bag composite precipitator & &4 & KR EE2S 132,711 88,836
Bag filter precipitator R BREERS 71,093 44,376
S02 and Nox emission reduction BL @M ERELY
(desulfurisation and denitrification PERR (BRI R AR E )
devices) 84,496 82,784
Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash conveying — H i (05 H &K Z4t)
system) 23,342 20,187
Total @5t 848,815 778,757
Timing of revenue recognition i 5 HE R B BRE
At a point in time X -
— Sales of environmental —HERRRK
protection equipment 848,815 778,757
— Sale of materials —$HEM K 8,002 12,943
— Rendering of services — R HARTE 2,000 452
Total FCEy 858,817 792,152
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6.

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from sales of
environmental protection equipment:
(Continued)

Sales of Environmental protection equipment

The Group manufactures, sells and installs
environmental pollution prevention equipment to the
customers. The customers pay the contract prices
to the Group according to the payment schedules as
stipulated in the contracts within one month. Sales
are recognised when control of the products and
services have transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer. If the service rendered
by the Group exceeds the payments, a contract asset
is recognised. If the payments exceed the service
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

If a contract includes the installation of hardware,
revenue for the hardware is recognised at a point in
time when the hardware is delivered, the legal title has
passed and the customer has accepted the hardware.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the performance obligations. The stand-alone
selling prices are determined by applying the expected
cost plus a margin approach.

Sales of materials

The Group sells the materials to the customers. The
products amount is repayable within one month. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer'’s acceptance of the products and
the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only
the passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

U ()
DTHEHEBERRENWRE: (&)

HERRR

AEERERATPHERLERRDR
Proami - TP RIES RFTANMNRERE
R—EARRAEEZNERER - FE®R
KEEFmEtIEEEE (MERZXMNTE
P2 i) HER I E - i AR B IR ey IR
BHMAK - SEEREREE Wi KB
PRt IR Rlg R ARAE-

fHE R emLRKEN  BANKER R
Nz BEEEMERCEBEBENUREPER
IR 1 2 I RERR

EREREENEENHBBILEEDE
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BIEEE

HEMH
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XEMNABTEEIREFCERERW
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

7. OTHER INCOME 7. EHawA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Bank interest income HRITH BEUA 1,197 4,528
Government grants B 4 B 2,103 8,699
Foreign exchange gain bE 3 I 258 =
Others HAth 168 882
3,726 14,109

8. oHER

AEERAEENRGEEBERALRKIEE
RRBAARBELEFERNRRRE
BRY%E  HEERNEREELMEHRR
BEEE - AEBEMERNRRNAAEE
WAL Fitt AEEER —EXK B

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’'s revenue during the year was mainly
derived from environmental protection equipment
contract revenue for installation and sale of
environmental pollution prevention equipment and
electronic products; the invoiced value of goods sold
and the value of services rendered. The products of
the Group are subject to similar risks and returns and,
therefore, the Group has only one business segment.

120

Geographical information EER
Revenue Non-current assets
Yy 25 ERBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F | Z=—tF | ZEBE-N\F | ZT—LtF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARETT | ARETR | AREFTTT
Mainland China AR A 850,788 772,584 161,892 161,352
Other countries EMmBER 8,029 19,568 = =
Consolidated total e 858,817 792,152 161,892 161,352

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is

based on the locations of the customers.

REFHEERE - W HRIER P AT

EXTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. 7NIER &)
Revenue from major customers: REFEEFHKE:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —EF—tF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Customer A EPA N/ATRE F * 99,459
e Customer did not contribute more than 10% of the total & BEPWEEREEFANRERAETEIONN £

consolidated revenue of the Group for the year

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BEERA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R ARETIT
Interest on banks loans RITERHOFE 6,278 5,821
10. INCOME TAX 10. FTEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT ARET T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year AR B TS 23,580 27311
Deferred tax (note 26) EIEFIE (M3E26) (8,408) 4,008
15,172 31,319
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was required HRAEBERFREEREB L EERT
since the Group has no assessable profit in Hong Kong A BB BRI ERIELRE-

for the years presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

EF—

ENEF= A= —AUEE

10. INCOME TAX (Continued)

1.

122

The reconciliation between the income tax and the

profit before tax is as follows:

10. FRrE®H ()

P15 15 B2 75 A g A1 RO 1 BR AN T

2018 2017
—E-N\F —t &
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Profit before tax T A& F 46,408 114,483
Notional tax on profit before tax BHBUEEMERGTER
calculated at the PRC statutory rate AT I HY 2 E IR 11,602 28,621
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A H138 5 2 O i 75 2 22 3,570 2,698
Income tax for the year REZEH 15,172 31,319
PROFIT FORTHE YEAR M. FREF
The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging REBWF AR MEHR AT SIBRES:
the following:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT ARBTT
Auditor's remuneration % B RN B & 1,000 1,000
Cost of inventories sold FrE R F B/ A 717577 593,050
Depreciation weE 6,756 6,466
Amortisation of prepaid land TE DA & IR IR
lease payments 1,981 1,619
Amortisation of intangible assets BV EEEE 196 185
Impairment loss on trade receivables g RWFIERAEEE 30,590 23,798
Impairment loss on bills receivables R REREEE 4,573 =
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e IR E B 18 159 465
Impairment loss on property, plantand ¥ % - &= & &EREEE
equipment - 5,694
Research and development expenditure  fff 2% i 5% 2,927 4,062
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BREES
remuneration — note 12): B & —FeE12) -
Wages and Salaries TERES 50,067 46,874
Retirement benefits RIREEEIMHK
scheme contribution 3,512 3,858
Staff welfare expenses BTEMNMAXZ 5,898 6,937
59,477 57669
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EER T EREFMHALTHE
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each Director were as follows: EEENBES0T:
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
ek BAREF
He Hi3E Al FHEIER #gt

Notes ~ RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M  ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Executive Directors HITEE

Bian Yu BF - 490 87 577
Bian Weican BERER - 238 87 325
Bian Shu Bk - 339 87 426
Non-Executive Directors F#{TES
Bian Jianguang BEX - 130 - 130
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 166 83 249
Chen Jiancheng bR 22 - 66 14 80
Independent Non- BIYHTES

Executive Directors
Zhang Bing R/ - 60 - 60
Feng Juji SIRE 1 - 116 - 116
Li Jiannan B2 2 - 15 - 15
Tam Hon Shan Celia EEm 3 - 22 = 22
Jiang Yan 2 3 - 10 - 10
Yu Zhaofei REF 4 - 28 - 28
Supervisors BE=
Chen Xinhua i - 170 43 213
Fu Jun #19 - 60 - 60
Fang Zhiguo FRE - 60 - 60
Chief executive BRITHAE
Qiu Jinxing e - 277 4 318

Total for the year ended HZE-ZT—/N\F
31 December 2018 +-A=+—-8
EFE B - 2,247 442 2,689
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

124

12. EERTEESFMALTHE

2018.

Appointed as non-executive director with effect from 1 June
2016 and resigned with effect from 5 December 2017.
Appointed as non-executive director with effect from 5
December 2017.

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) (#&)
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
ek RINEF
we H {2 Fl BELES #BEr
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
Executive Directors HITEE
Bian Yu BF - 450 56 506
Bian Weican BER - 163 49 212
Bian Shu Bk - 135 49 184
Non-Executive Directors F#{TES
Bian Jianguang BEX - 150 - 150
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 135 49 184
Zhu Hong R4L 5 - 60 = 60
Chen Jiancheng BR 22 3 6 = = = =
Independent Non- BYFHTES
Executive Directors
Tam Hon Shan Celia EERE S 3 - 260 = 260
Jiang Yan = 3 - 60 - 60
Zhang Bing ®IA - 60 - 60
Supervisors E=
Chen Xinhua i - 126 25 151
Fu Jun #19 - 60 - 60
Fang Zhiguo FRE - 60 - 60
Chief executive SHRITBAE
Qiu Jinxing JlleE - 318 34 352
Total for the year ended HZE-ZT—tF
31 December 2017 +-A=t+—8
HFE B = 2,037 262 2,299
Notes: Hiat
Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect 1 B \EZA=Z1+HREZTABIIFHR
from 30 March 2018. TES-
Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect 2 BT \FN\A=-HREZXABIIENT
from 3 August 2018. =
Resigned with effect from 30 March 2018. 3 BT N\F=ZA=1+HEHEI-
Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect 4 BT \F=ZA=THREZTABLIEH
from 30 March 2018 and resigned with effect from 3 August TES YE-ZE-N\FN\A=ABEET-

5 BE-Z-RERA-RREZERIFNTES:
YE-_F—tF+_ARBERE-

6 B +tF+-ARBREZERINTE
-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three directors and the chief executive (2017:
one director and the chief executive), details of whose
remuneration are set out in information above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining one (2017: three)
non-directors, highest paid employees for the year are

12. EERTEESFMALTHE

(%)

AEE AERRFMNEETER=2E
EREBRITRAB (ZT—+F: —%ES
REBRITHRAR)  HHFMFBRR LXE
Be-AFE Hep2i (ZT—EF:=8)
HEFESFMMEESOFIFELT

as follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Salaries and other benefits He REMBER 306 599

Retirement benefits scheme
contributions ROKAEFIFTEI 50 49 25
355 624

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

as follows:

HWN T T HBERNNIFEES R TE
EMHBBEWNT:

Number of employees

EEHHE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
Emolument band: s :
HK$nil — HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T 1 3

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for
loss of office other than those disclosed above. In
addition, during the years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017, no directors waived any emoluments.

REE-_ZE—NER_FE—+F&+=A
Zt—HILEE BEXHBEEEN K&
EfERIEA RS TWALT (BEESE)X
NERME  EARENARSESEAH
BB E - I REBEE =T —N\F k=
E—+tF+-A=+—HULFE HEES
WEI MBS -
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13.

14.

126

B2 _F—N\FE+_H="+—HIFEF

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017:
Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profit
for the year of approximately 31,236,000 (2017:
RMB83,164,000) attributable to owners of the
Company and the weighted average number of
135,000,000 (2017: 135,000,000) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary
shares during the two years ended 31 December 2018
and 2017

13.

14.

iR =

EETEEMBE_Z-\Ft_-_A=1+—
AULEFERNEMBRE (ZF—LF:8) -

BRER
BREXER

ARAFE AR TREARFIREAD
RIFEA AR (7 PO L4 A 31,236,000
T (ZF—t%F: AR%83,164,0007T) -
DR YR BT R A 00 F 5 B
135,000,000% ( — % — -4 : 135,000,000
S ETSEER

BREBERF
REZE-_ZE—NEFER_ZE—+F+_-A

=+ HLEMEFE  ARRHEEMELE
BEEER UHMEZSRETAN -
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BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ -HERRZE

Plant and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BF HERKSE RE  BAERE  EEIR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARET:

Cost RA
At 1 January 2017 RZE-t5-A—-H 39,054 31,01 1,085 1,009 136 72,265
Additions AE 51,809 1,047 = 507 = 53,363
Disposals e - (2,034) - - - (2,034)
Transfers i S 136 = = (136) -
At 31 December 2017 and R-E-+&+-A=1-H

1 January 2018 k=E-\E—-A—-H 90,863 30,160 1,055 1516 S 123,594
Additions AE 1,049 12 204 214 1479
Transfers E5 214 = = - (214) -
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NEtZB=t1-H 91,077 31,209 1,067 1,720 S 125,073

Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHTEREE
and impairment

At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F-f—H 13,423 10,109 644 688 = 24,864
Charge for the year REETH 2,878 3123 219 246 = 6,466
Impairment for the year REERE 5,694 5 = = = 5,694
Disposals & - (336) - - - (336)
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—+F+-A=1-H
1 January 2018 R-Z-\5-f-H 21,99 12,89 863 934 = 36,688
Charge for the year REELM 3,757 2,548 140 3N = 6,756
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZB=1+-H 25,752 15,444 1,003 1,245 S 43,444
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZB=1-H 65,325 15,765 64 475 S 81,629
At 31 December 2017 RZF-tF+-A=1-H 68,868 17264 192 582 S 86,906
As at 31 December 2018, certain of the Group's RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H8 TEEEA
buildings with a carrying amount of approximately B4 B ANRKE11,2170000 (ZE—+F:
RMB11,217000 (2017: RMB12,839,000) were pledged AR 12,839,000 ME TEFE &M
to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group AR A EERNEITE REE IR I
(note 25). (BFsE25) °
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16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16. TS L A EFKIE

2018 2017

—E-N\F —EF—tF

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

At 1 January n—H—H 46,982 20,070
Addition NE - 28,631

Amortisation of prepaid land TE T H A & IR IR

lease payments (1,981) (1,619)
At 31 December W+—A=+—H 45,001 46,982

Current portion mENEL S (1,981) (1,981)
Non-current portion EREE 43,020 45,001

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's leasehold
lands with an aggregate net carrying amount of
RMB16,434,000 (2017: RMB17,668,000) were pledged
to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group
(note 25).

R-ZE—N\F+ZA=1+—8 REBER
SHEERE A ANRE16,434,000T (ZE—+
F: AR#17668,0000t) M ELHWE S
U AEEERNRITEREERMIE
1 (FfI7E25) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Patent Software Total
=R B4 et

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTT ARBTT

Cost KA
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—H—H 110 371 481
Addition NE = 299 299
At 31 December 2017, R-ZE—+FE+=-A=+—8H"

1 January 2018 and —ET-N\F—-HA-HBK

31 December 2018 —E2-N\FE+=ZA=+—H 110 670 780

Accumulated amortisation  E:HE# KR EESE
and impairment loss

At 1 January 2017 R_ZE—+F—H—H 53 153 206

Amortisation for the year EFF " 174 185
At 31 December 2017 and RZZE—+F+=-A=+—H

1 January 2018 EZFE—-NF—H—H 64 327 391

Amortisation for the year REFF 11 185 196

At 31 December 2018 R=B-NF+=A=+—H 75 512 587

Carrying amount BREE
At 31 December 2018 R=ZB-NFE+=A=+—H 35 158 193
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+=-HA=+—H 46 343 389
18. INVENTORIES 18. £ &

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T ARET T

Raw materials R 31,209 19,927

Work in progress TR m 13,704 30,741

Finished goods IR o 279,367 420,271

324,280 470,939
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

130

19. EZRRREREBERRERS

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMT AR T T

Trade receivables 2 5 W FIE 606,985 535,658
Less: provision for loss allowance W BRI (109,496) (78,906)
497,489 456,752

Bills receivable eSS 160,665 162,593
Less: provision for loss allowance RS (4,573) =
653,581 619,345

Trade and bills receivable

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, and the
credit period is generally 1 month. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable

balances.

The Group's bills receivable are all due within one year.
As 31 December 2018, the Group's bills receivables
of RMB41,590,000 (2017: RMB50,548,000) were
pledged to secure the Group's bills payable (note 23).

EZRBREARERRE

BH5RWRBRERRERD —RR/IHE
A o 2R 5 B3 SR EL R UK (o] 78 W BRI 4 5 B
REEH B gsE SR EEE TR
A e NEEY BB EE ZRUGRIAERIT A
A R A=A IE R

REEMRMBERERKERHHR —FREH-
R-E—N\F+_A=+—H KEBA
R #41,590,000c (ZZE—+F: AR
50,5648,0007C) M E R ERIEE G LLAK
EENEMNZERREER (Hi323) °
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BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESBRWFHERERERE 2

(Continued)

EZRUREREBRRERE (4)

Trade and bills receivable (Continuead)

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the ERERAMEINNE SEKGIE (KK
invoice date, and net of allowance, is as follows: BE)NERRTWET

2018 2017
—E-—N\&E —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBFT
Within 1 year 1K 123,562 171,362
1 to 2 years 1224 259,387 187705
2 to 3 years 2E3F 96,158 76,889
3 to 4 years 3EAF 18,382 20,796
497,489 456,752

B 5 R RE R R AR

Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables:

2018 2017

=E-N\F —T—+F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

At 1 January n—HA—H 78,906 55,108
Increase in loss allowance for the year K4 € 518 B & 1€ N 30,590 23,798
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—H 109,496 78,906

ERZBEERENHEK:

Reconciliation of loss allowance for bills receivable:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —E—+F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T ARBTT

At 1 January n—H—H - -

Increase in loss allowance for the year 2N € 518 & 32 N 4,573 =

At 31 December W+—A=+—H 4,573 -
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Trade and bills receivable (Continuead)

The Group applies the simplified approach under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instrument” to provide for
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the ageing. The expected credit losses also incorporate
forward looking information.

19.

ESRERREREVREE #)

EZRUREREBRRERE (4)

AEEEABTEYHRELRNEISR (S 7
TRIBETNES AR E 5 RUHIR
EREREERETREBRREERR-
R EEREEER  EZRUASRIE
AEEERBRERAIEEROA - BREES
BIRE2REEER -

1t02 2t03 3tod
Current years years years Total
Ik 1228 283% 3B4% @zt
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NEtZA=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate METHEHERR 0% 6% 20% 79% 18%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) EUFE(ARETT) 123,562 216,922 120,197 86,304 606,985
Loss allowance (RMB'000) EEEE(ARETT) - 17535 24,039 67922 109,496
At 31 December 2017 RZF-tF+-f=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate MEFHRBRERX 0% 7% 20% 69% 15%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) EUFE(ARETT) 171,362 201,266 96,111 66,919 535,668
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BEER(ARETT) - 13,561 19,222 46,123 78,906
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)
Trade and bills receivable (Continuead)

At 31 December 2018, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by certain banks in the PRC
(the”Endorsed Notes"”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers
(the”Endorsement”). Subsequent to the Endorsement,
the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the
Endorsed Notes, including the sale, transfer or pledge
of the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a
right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). The total
carrying amount of the Endorsed Notes of the Group
as at 31 December 2018 was RMB162,601,000 (2017:
RMB116,096,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to certain Endorsed Notes accepted
by large and reputable banks (the “Derecognised
Notes"”) with an amount of RMB69,411,000 as at 31
December 2018 (2017: RMB52,983,000). Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of these Derecognised Notes and the associated
trade payables. The maximum exposure to loss
from the Group’'s Continuing Involvement in these
Derecognised Notes and the undiscounted cash
flows to repurchase these Derecognised Notes is
equal to their carrying amounts. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of the Group’s Continuing
Involvement in these Derecognised Notes are not
significant. The Group continued to recognise the full
carrying amount of the remaining Endorsed Notes
and the associated trade payables settled with an
amount of RMB62,973,000 as at 31 December 2018
(2017: RMB63,113,000), because the directors believe
that the Group has retained the substantial risks and
reward, which include default risks relating to such
remaining Endorsed Notes.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any
gain or loss (2017: Nil) on the date of transfer of
the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the year.

19.

ESERREREVREE #)

EZRUREREBRRERE (4)

R-E—NF+_A=+—H AEEMH
EETHEREERTEE TRITEMAD
AETRKRER ([BE2ER])  USEEEM
ZEHERNESEMNZKE(EE]) -
REER AEBRTERBAMNEASE
ZENEN BREATAEME=FH
B HREIERBEEZBR - REBE(PEA
REMBZEE) WHBIARITEL:
AIEEZBENRBEALASEAEGERE
([FEEEEH]) - R=2E—N\F+=A
—t+—H AEENEERENERAEL
A AR 162,601,0000T (ZZE—+4F:
AR #116,096,00070) cEFR A K=
E-N\F+-_A=+—RH AEEEEE
AR RMARITEMNETEEEEA
R #69,411,000 T (ZE—+F: AR
52,983,0007T) ([ I EREER]) BN
BRI R RER Bt AEESKRIE
REERIERE RN 2 IIREE M AER
B O EMNFIE  AEERZE R ILERZR
FREEEFHHEREBRRRIKLEE
ZERIEREBHRGBRBEREES
REEEE -BEFRE AEBRZERIE
BREENFBEEZESHHATFETK R
—E-N\F+-A=+—H8 AEELER
REBBEEZZERN2TFEABEREBE S
BE SERFIEARKE2,973,0000T (==
—+F: AR¥63,113,0007T)  TVHRES
B ARBIDRBERTH»RABKEHK:
BIEEZEFNMEEZREENENRR

FRAKEREERLERAZEE AL E

REMFEXEER (ZF—LF &) R
FARRAFE BECANSHERER
BEBESHTRERI - FRAHIELEE-
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

134

B2 _F—N\FE+_H="+—HIFEF

20. EREEREE

Disclosures of revenue-related items RIS HENEREE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2018 2017
R-ZE-N\F RZE—LtF
+=-A=+—-8 |+t=ZA=+—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT R ARETIT
Total contract assets BEREE 261,028 193,201
Total contract liabilities BE RAA 202,284 310,482
Contract receivables (included in trade & RIEWRFIE (5t AEB 5
and bills receivables) FEUGRIE & R ) 653,581 619,345
Transaction prices allocated to DREFRERTHAE
performance obligation unsatisfied BAEELTEEN T
at end of year and expected to be FEBRRAWEDN
recognised as revenue in: RBEH:
-2018 ——Z=-N\F - 885,789
- 2019 ——ZE—-NF 960,180 1,151,446
- 2020 ——ZT-THF 689,546 =
- 2021 ——E-—4F 377,943 -
2,027,669 2,037235

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1T—-HLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Revenue recognised in the year that FUEFAEREBELR
was included in contract liabilities RNE R RIS
at beginning of year 192,155 153,121
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

20. CONTRACT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 20. EREERERE (&)

(Continued)
Significant changes in contract assets and rFEEREEREEAEENEARSE
contract liabilities during the year: g
2018 2018 2017 2017
“E-N\E | ZE-N\E | ZE—+F —ET—+F
Contract Contract Contract Contract
assets liabilities assets liabilities

AREE | AAAM | AREE ARAR
RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBETT ARETR

Increase due to operation AAFELEMmILM

in the year 91,037 170,050 93,676 104,902
Transfer of contract assets to EREREER

receivables & e hIE (23,210) = (54,059) =

Transfer of contract liabilites to ~ EAARBEZE W

revenue - (278,248) - (173,750)
A contract asset represents the Group's right to EREEEASERRATFERERIR
consideration in exchange for products or services that T mUER B R REF o

the Group has transferred to a customer.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to ARAaEEASERNEFEZRAEEER
transfer products or services to a customer for which EPWEINRE (ERRESE)NERK
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of RR7GHI B AT

consideration is due) from the customer.
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BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

21. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. FE{fRE - Z& R HtEWRKIE
RECEIVABLES

2018 2017
—E-N\E T F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBFT
Other receivables H e U IR 22,544 26,654
Less: impairment losses BB EEE (2,315) (2,156)
20,229 24,498
Prepayments BT RIR 25,380 17607
Due from holding company (note) FEMIERR R RIFRIA (AL ) 162 2,439
45,771 44,544
Note: The amount due from the holding company is unsecured, non- Biat: FEWIER A RFIBAEER - £ 8 M EETEER
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. Hio
Impairment of other receivables H ih JE WK IE R B
The movements in impairment losses of other H b U IR EEERNZ ST
receivables are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET ARBFT
At beginning of the reporting period s H ) 2,156 1,691
Impairment loss on other receivables H e W SRR B S 18 159 465
At the end of the reporting period wEHR 2,315 2,156

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES AND 22. RfTRIREEHRREBERER
PLEDGED DEPOSIT

At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash RMERR  AEBUARBTENRITR
balances of Group denominated in RMB amounted BeEHSEMRERHARK6,161,0007T
equivalent to approximately RMB$16,161,000 (2017: —ZE—+F: ARM47282,0007T) - AR
RMB$47282,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign LR AINE BB TR A HMEEEF
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange By o

Control Regulations.
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BE-F—\E+-AZ+—HILEE

22.

23.

BANK AND CASH BALANCES AND
PLEDGED DEPOSIT (continued)

Pledged deposit with banks have been placed as
security for bills payables issued by the Group. Bank
guarantees are performance guarantees and made for
varying periods ranging from several months to five
years depending on the agreement of the contract,
and earn interest at the respective short term time
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

22.

ROTRASHEABRROERER
(4)

RITEERFERDER URAREE LD
FE RIBRMEA - RITEFRASBEOERIL
FBEAZRFHREANTRBMRIEL -8R
FA R E  WIRE B 58 MF3R
MA KRGS - RITEBREEERFERIFA
B R RN EEEENRTT

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23. EZENRERENERE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—tF
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Trade payables g S ENFIE 338,831 360,092
Bills payable R RE 24,506 59,617
363,337 419,709

Bills payable were secured by pledged bank deposits
of RMB27130,000 (2017: RMB18,736,000) and the
Group's bills receivables of RMB41,590,000 (2017:
RMB50,548,000).

An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on invoice dates, is as
follows:

ENEBEUNEEBRITIERARE
27,130,000t (ZE—+tF: AR¥
18,736,0007T) * A R AL B HEUEE A
R #41,590,000c (ZZE—+F: AR
50,548,0007T ) K -

RBERR - BHRNFAERNERBHWN
BRI

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEF T
Within 1 year 1A 242,905 301,933
1 to 2 years 1225 75,466 50,760
2 to 3 years 2E3F 15,729 2,508
Over 3 years HBiB3F 4,731 4,891
338,831 360,092
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BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

24. Hitb BN FHIERETE M

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARMT AR T T

Other payables H b &~ R 102,151 108,028
Due to related companies (note) FEATBEES R RIZRIE (M at) 6,034 1,367
108,185 109,379

Note: The amount due to related companies are unsecured, non-

Biat: FENREEARFRAEEM 28 REETEER

interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms. i
25. BANK LOANS 25. RITEN
2018 2017
—B-NF | _FT—LF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Bank loan - Secured RITER—FHEA 109,000 110,000

The secured bank loans of the Group amounting to
RMB49,000,000 were secured by (i) the Group's
building situated in the Mainland China, which had
an aggregate net carrying value of RMB11,217000 as
at 31 December 2018 (2017: RMB12,839,000); and
(i) the Group's leasehold land situated in Mainland
China, which had an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB16,434,000 as at 31 December 2018 (2017:

RMB17,668,000).

The effective interest rates per annum at the end of

the reporting period were as follows:

AEENBEABRITERHATSEER
() AEBEMATERABNEFT R
—NFE+-_A=+—BNEEFELEES
ARB11217000 (ZE—+F: ARK
12,839,0007T) : M (i) A & B AL 7 A B A b
WHEELH R \FE+_B=+—8
FERAEE R B ARE16,434,000T (=F
—+t&F: AR¥17668,0007T) °

RI|BEMROEREN T -

2018
—E2-N\F

2017
—F—+F

Short-term bank loans:
Fixed-rate

TR
EREIES

4.35%-6.00%

5.00%-5.44%
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BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

26. DEFERRED TAX

26. ELEFIE

The following are the details deferred tax liabilities and AEBERREEHEBEREENE
assets recognised by the Group. IR e
Impairment  Impairment
of Property, of trade  Impairment
plant and and hills of other
equipment  receivables  receivables Accruals Tax loss Total
BN
NEBE REWZEE Al
REFEAE BE  NEHE  EHER  HEFEB @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETn
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—+F-f—-AH = 13,776 423 10,013 5275 29,487
- Credit/(debit) to —HAGRBER/
consolidated statement (BfFaBERAR)
of profit or loss 1422 5,950 116 (8,126) (3,370) (4,008
At31 December 2017and 1 RZE—+t&+-A=1-H
January 2018 k=F-\E—-A-H 1,422 19,726 539 1,887 1,905 25479
- Credi(debit) to ~HANRABER/
consolidated statement (BRABERTR)
of profit or loss - 8,791 40 (335) (88) 8,408
At 31 December 2018 R-B-NEtZB=t1-H 1422 28517 579 1,552 1817 33,887
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTT
Authorised: ERE
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,0000% & & EI (&
RMB$1.00 each ARH1.007T 8 & Ak 135,000 135,000
Issued and fully paid: BEEITRERE:
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,000/ &A% E (&
RMB$1.00 each AREE1.007TH) T A% 135,000 135,000
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27.

28.

140

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Capital management

The Group's primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost. The Group's
objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue
new shares, buyback shares, raise new debts, redeem
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

RESERVES
(a) The amounts of the Group’s reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

27.

28.

R ()

EXER
AEEEEEANTIERREREARHE
AIRHERERE N BB ERER KT IELE R

B EE M R BR TS T (BIA RS & A AN A Bl
B HEABRREHRE R AR MERRE
AREN R AEEEREAN B RRRE
AEBERFEL LN N REBENLE
BREDES RRRERZADR -

AEBRBEEERANES EREENERE
WHESEHRE - RERHARERERE
AEEHGHBREIRN  BTHR CE
B BEMER BRRAEBILESR
AR R T ©

#fE
(a) AEBORESEXHAEH NG A
HRAMDER R RS BN

F=E5-
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

28. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Reserves of the Company

28. f#fE (&)
(b) A2 FEHE

Statutory
Share Capital surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
R &E EXfE LERHRREE  REER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFR ARETT ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2017 R=Z—+%-f—-AH 239,064 3,303 27510 205,758 475,635
Profit for the year FREH - - - 77517 77517
Appropriation to statutory HREATRBER
surplus reserve - - 7752 (7752) =
At 31 December 2017 RIZ-tF+ZA=1-H 239064 3,303 35,262 275,523 553,152
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\E-H—H 239,064 3,303 35,262 275,523 553,162
Profit for the year FREN - - - 31,724 31,724
Appropriation to statutory HEZEERBRE
surplus reserve - - 3172 (3,172) -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=1-H 239,064 3,303 38,434 304,075 584,876
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves of the (c) AEEREHEEREDN
Group
(i) Share premium () R RE

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years' losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years'
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

IRER A RE RS B AL
SREME ARNF R ERPER
VHWBARARLEFEATE
0% (RIEFBE ST RA
NOEIREE WA HERIBAF
EEBR)ZEETRBHBEE &
EHREBESENZEEERAK
BI50% © & TE B AR ] AR
HBTFEEESNIEE - A
BRIKSHAA FEEEIN  BRER
ZRBESEABTERRAK
25% °
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BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

28. RESERVES (continued)

142

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years' losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years'
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

Safety production reserve

Pursuant to the regulation of Administrative
Measures for the Withdrawal and Use
of Expenses for Safety Production of
Enterprises in the PRC relating to the
construction industry, a subsidiary of the
Group, Tianjie Installation Engineering,
is required to transfer an amount to the
reserve account as safety production
reserve. The amount is calculated based
on the revenue of construction each year
and at the applicable rate of 2%. The
safety production reserve will be used for
modification and maintenance of safety
equipment in accordance with the rules of
the Company Law of the PRC and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

28. f#fE (&)
REFBELEREN (&)

(c)

(ii)

(iir)

A JE BB 1

RIBFENRDER S ERRAHELR
ERMA ANAF RERPHEAK
MYHMBARARHEFREEAE
FAE10% (REBEPESFIRA
FOEREE W HE R ESF
EERBR)EEACRHREG &
ERREBETEIZTERBRA
HI50% ° A E & ER M e A K
HBEFREEENIEE - AW
BRIBSHIBEFERERIN  BRER
ZEEEERAR TNERRARN
25% °

LZEEEM

REBEFRERZETERRN (D
EREEBRARIMEAER
R RE AEEHHB R
AIRBEREKTIRARREBRPE
A—ERBRERREEERME -
AR B FREERRIZ2%
HEMALL RETE - L2 ERE
RIRERBERRENRERRE
EREBHSE R EE - TR
Rk e
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BE—F—\F1—A=1—HIFE

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED mERSREBRMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from (a) EMETBIMELENEEES
financing activities
The following table shows the Group's changes TRHEIAEBERAARFEAMEEE
in liabilities arising from financing activities during MEENEES
the year:
Bank loans
BITER
RMB’000
ARET T
At 1 January 2017 WRZZE—+F—H—H 119,000
Changes in cash flows ReER=E2H (9,000)
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+tF+=A=+—H 110,000
Changes in cash flows RERELE) (1,000)
At 31 December 2018 R=B-NFE+=A=+—H 109,000
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EF—

30. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION 30. &= R BMRRBE

144

b 05 e W ik

OF THE COMPANY

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KRB RANRE 34,620 34,620
Property, plant and equipment VI BB MR B 70,635 75,308
Prepaid land lease payments TE T F & FUE 41,926 43,882
Intangible assets EREE 193 389
Deferred tax assets EIEFRIEE E 29,367 20,692
Deposit paid for intangible asset REFEEXNNES 1,292 =
Pledged deposits BEBTR 1,871 3,578
179,904 178,469
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BE 306,224 435,108
Trade and bills receivables B 5 RWGIE K R E & 605,895 592,011
Contract assets aREE 261,028 183,366
Prepaid land lease payments TERT + HbF & RIE 1,956 1,956
Prepayment, deposits and TENRIE e REAM
other receivables FEU FRIR 65,999 60,106
Pledged deposits BEEAFH 39,323 86,169
Bank and cash balances RITRINBEEH 15,339 41,696
1,295,764 1,400,412
Current liabilities =R
Trade and bills payables RN FERENERE 339,1822 394,869
Contract liabilities aRAE 199,179 296,036
Other payables and accruals Hib A RIE L ERE A 32,790 29,189
Bank loans RITER 109,000 110,000
Tax payable FEfHIE 75,641 60,635
755,792 890,729
Net current assets REBEEFE 539,972 509,683
NET ASSETS BEFE 719,876 688,152
Capital and reserves BRK#1E
Share capital fi% 7 135,000 135,000
Share premium i% 17 % B 239,064 239,064
Reserves f# 345,812 314,088
TOTAL EQUITY TS HRER 719,876 688,152
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31. IREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group and RIEER  AEERARRWEEMEKR
the Company did not have any significant contingent IARAB(ZE—LF:E) -

liabilities (2017: Nil).

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BHARS
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

Transactions with the holding HERARNRS

company
Rental expense e (i) 238 1,794
Electricity charges paid by TRARRERANEE
the holding company TRMESE
on behalf of the Group (ii) 3,299 2,367
Transaction with other HEMBEBINXS
related parties
Sales of materials HEM B
AT FREREHHE AR AT AT F R BT
BRAF (iii) 2 =
T RZHMUEM RO ERAR T RZH MM R D
BRAF (iii) - 24
Purchase of materials REM R
AT RKZFME AR QA AT RRFMBERAE (i) 733 =
Services received: B2k
AT R Z2BAEBERAT AT K2 38 B HE R
BRAF (iv) 6,130 13,107
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BE T \F+-_A=1+—HIFE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

146

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the

year:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The rental fee was charged and the rental
income was received based on mutually agreed
prices.

The payments were made on behalf of the Group
based on the actual costs incurred.

The sales of materials to the related parties and
purchases of materials from the related parties
were made based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

The services received from the related parties
were based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

Key management personnel remuneration

The emoluments of the Company's Directors, who are
also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in Note 12.

2. BBAERS (&)

GRS BHREME D FHROZHIN A
FE-ASEHARBBSBNATRS:

() MHEERRESRARETHENE
RS A B B o

(i) BEEENEERARNEBL R
Ho

(i) BB HEMH KA EEY
SR T7 1 € M B A8 R AGFETT -

BB R TIRES HENE
R RARFRAETT

(iv)

FTEEEASNEHH

ARAEE (ABTRAREIREREN
AR ) B S MY 128 R
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For the year ended 31 December 2018
BHE—FE—\F+_A=1+—HIFEZE

33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 33. A ARIEENBARMNFE
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 RZE—NF+ZA=F+—HFEWRBEA
December 2018 are as follows: AIMEEIRMT -
Percentage of
Place of the Company's
incorporation/ indirect ownership
registration and Issued and interest voting
Name operation paid-up capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
HMAL/ ER ARREGHEETERS
2R REXLY BRTRARER ER/BNARESL  EEER
2018 2017
ZE-\E | —ZT—+F
Tianjie Installation Engineering * The PRC RMB4,500,000 Provision of
FEMARRRIRERAHA 100% 100% installation services
i AR 4,500,007 100% 100% REZERS
Tianjie Electronic and Technology * The PRC RMB2,000,000 Manufacture and sale
EEMAREFRBBRAA 100% 100% of electronic products
i AR #2,000,0007C 100% 100% RERHEETER
Turpan Environmental and Technology *  The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
HEERZREREERAT of environmental
pollution prevention
equipment and
electronic products
i AR 20,000,000 100% 100% HERHEERFEREHR
RERETER
e The English name is for identification purpose only. * B A BERZR

34. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 34. it&E&mESEHRE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved HAEVERRERZZE—NEFE=ZA=ZFTN
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on AEESSHERIETE-

29 March 2019.

Annual Report 2018 4E8 147



Five-Year Financial Summary

TuAF I 05 B R

For the year ended 31 December

BEt-A=t-BLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-N\E | ZE—tF ZE-HRFE —T-H1F _—T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETRH
Continuing operations FEMEER

Revenue Yezs 858,817 792,152 956,432 919,975 781,905
Gross profit e 141,240 199,102 234,033 186,576 143,159

Profit before tax from REBBELEERR

continuing operations iR il 46,408 114,483 136,314 134,399 100,168
Income tax expense IS B X 15,172 31,319 30,817 37934 25,979
Profit for the year from REBELEER

continuing operations ERET 31,236 83,164 105,497 96,465 74,189
Discontinued operations BREREER
Profit and total comprehensive  F A& T k2 ERALFE

income for the year 31,236 83,164 105,497 96,465 74,189
Earnings per share attributable to ~ FRAR AR R EH Tk

owners of the Company B (UBRARE

for the year SIR)

(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic and diluted -BEXREE 0.23 0.62 0.78 0.90 074
Gross profit margin ER= 16.45% 25.13% 24.47% 20.28% 18.31%
Net profit margin = 3.64% 10.50% 11.03% 10.49% 9.49%

As at 31 December

R+=B=+-H

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-NF | ZE—+tF ZEZ—F ZZ-HF CZE-MOF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRH
Non-current assets ERBEE 161,892 161,352 103,730 104,748 129,027
Current assets MBEE 1,342,396 | 1,478,208 1,587611 1,422,808 780,195
Current liabilities mEAE 783,062 949570 1084535 1,026,227 668,460
Net current assets MEEETE 559,334 528,638 503,076 396,581 111,735
Total assets less current liabilities ZELERZEE & 721,226 689,990 606,826 501,329 240,762
Net Assets BETE 721,226 689,990 606,826 501,329 240,762
Capital B 135,000 135,000 135,000 135,000 100,000
Share Premium BinafE 239,064 239,064 239,064 239,064 =
Reserves 1 347,162 315,926 232,762 127265 140,762
Total equity EnBE 721,226 689,990 606,826 501,329 240,762
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